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      PART I 
 

GENERAL INFORMATION FOR PROPOSERS 
 
I-1. Purpose.  This request for proposals (RFP) provides interested Proposers with sufficient 
information to enable them to prepare and submit proposals for consideration by the Pennsylvania 
Turnpike Commission (Commission) to satisfy a need for annual independent audit services. 
 
I-2. Issuing Office.  This RFP is issued for the Commission by the Operations Review Department.   
 
I-3. Scope.  This RFP contains instructions governing the proposals to be submitted and the material 
to be included therein; a description of the service to be provided; requirements which must be met to be 
eligible for consideration; general evaluation criteria; and other requirements to be met by each 
proposal. 
 
I-4. Problem Statement. The Pennsylvania Turnpike Commission desires to engage a qualified firm 
of certified public accountants (“Independent Auditor”) to audit its fiscal 2011, 2012 and 2013 financial 
and Other Post Employment Benefits (OPEB) Trust statements.  The Commission’s fiscal year end is 
May 31.  The selected firm will conduct the audits and provide the audited financial statements no later 
than August 15, 2011, 2012, and 2013 and the audited OPEB Trust statements no later than September 
15, 2011, 2012 and 2013 respectively.  The selected firm will perform related services such as assisting 
the Commission with its Comprehensive Annual Financial Report for each of the three fiscal years.  A 
work statement is provided in Part V.   
 
In addition to the services discussed above, the selected firm may also be requested under the terms of 
this agreement to provide additional auditing and related advisory services and guidance to the 
Commission. Examples of such additional services may include the performance of specific business 
and technology audits, providing guidance to the Operations Review, Toll Revenue Audit, Information 
Technology Security and Finance Departments relating to SAP and/or Toll Revenue system auditing and 
security as well as new accounting standards and best practices. The Commission’s aim is to select an 
Independent Auditor who demonstrates a strong record of experience in auditing similar type entities.   
 
I-5. Type of Contract.  It is proposed that if a contract is entered into as a result of this RFP, it will 
be a fixed fee contract. The Commission may in its sole discretion undertake negotiations with 
Proposers whose proposals as to price and other factors show them to be qualified, responsible, and 
capable of performing the work. 
 
I-6. Rejection of Proposals.  The Commission reserves the right to reject any and all proposals 
received as a result of this request, or to negotiate separately with competing Proposers. 
 
I-7. Subcontracting.     Any use of subcontractors by a Proposer must be identified in the proposal.  
During the contract period use of any subcontractors by the selected Proposer, which were not 
previously identified in the proposal, must be approved in advance in writing by the Commission.  
 
A firm that responds to this solicitation as a prime may not be included as a designated subcontractor to 
another firm that responds to the same solicitation.  Multiple responses under any of the foregoing 
situations may cause the rejection of all responses of the firm or firms involved.  This does not 
preclude a firm from being set forth as a designated subcontractor to more than one prime contractor 
responding to the project advertisement. 
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I-8. Incurring Costs.  The Commission is not liable for any costs the Proposer incurs in preparation 
and submission of its proposal, in participating in the RFP process or in anticipation of award of 
contract. 
 
I-9. Mandatory Pre-proposal Conference.  A mandatory pre-proposal conference will be held 
Monday, November 8, 2010 at 10:00 a.m. in the Large Board Room at the Commission’s Central 
Administration Building located at 700 South Eisenhower Blvd., Middletown, PA 17057. The purpose 
of this conference is to clarify any points in the RFP, which may not have been clearly understood.  
Questions can be forwarded prior to the meeting to ensure sufficient analysis can be made before an 
answer is supplied.  Written questions should be submitted by email to RFP-Q@paturnpike.com with 
RFP 10-10210-2800 in the Subject Line to be received no later than November 3, 2010, by 12:00 p.m. 
In view of the limited facilities available for the conference, it is requested representation be limited to 
three (3) individuals per Proposer.  The pre-proposal conference is for information only.  Answers 
furnished during the conference will not be official until verified, in writing, by the Issuing Office.  All 
questions and written answers will be issued as an addendum to and become part of this RFP. 
 
FAILURE TO BE REPRESENTED AND SIGNED IN AT THIS MANDATORY PRE-
PROPOSAL CONFERENCE WILL BE CAUSE FOR REJECTION OF PROPOSAL. 
 
I-10. Addenda to the RFP.  If it becomes necessary to revise any part of this RFP before the proposal 
response date, addenda will be posted to the Commission’s website under the original RFP document.  It 
is the responsibility of the Proposer to periodically check the website for any new information or 
addenda to the RFP.  
 
The Commission may revise a published advertisement. If the Commission revises a published 
advertisement less than ten days before the RFP due date, the due date will be extended to maintain the 
minimum ten-day advertisement duration if the revision alters the project scope or selection criteria.  
Firms are responsible to monitor advertisements/addenda to ensure the submitted proposal complies 
with any changes in the published advertisement. 
 
I-11. Response.  To be considered, proposals must be delivered to the Pennsylvania Turnpike 
Commission’s Contracts Administration Department, Attention: Wanda Metzger, on or before 12:00 
p.m. on November 30, 2010. The Pennsylvania Turnpike Commission is located at 700 South 
Eisenhower Boulevard, Middletown, PA 17057 (Street address). Our mailing Address is P. O.  Box 
67676, Harrisburg, PA 17106. 
 
Please note that use of U.S. Mail delivery does not guarantee delivery to this address by the above-
listed time for submission.  Proposers mailing proposals should allow sufficient delivery time to ensure 
timely receipt of their proposals.  If the Commission office location to which proposals are to be 
delivered is closed on the proposal response date, due to inclement weather, natural disaster, or any 
other cause, the deadline for submission shall be automatically extended until the next Commission 
business day on which the office is open.  Unless the Proposers are otherwise notified by the 
Commission, the time for submission of proposals shall remain the same. 
 
I-12. Proposals.  To be considered, Proposers should submit a complete response to this RFP, using 
the format provided in PART II.  Each proposal should be submitted in eight (8) hard copies and one 
complete and exact copy of the technical proposal on CD-ROM in Microsoft Office or Microsoft 
Office-compatible format. to the Contract Administration Department.  No other distribution of 
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proposals will be made by the Proposer.  Each proposal page should be numbered for ease of reference.  
Proposals must be signed by an official authorized to bind the Proposer to its provisions and include the 
Proposer’s Federal Identification Number.  For this RFP, the proposal must remain valid for at least 120 
days.  Moreover, the contents of the proposal of the selected Proposer will become contractual 
obligations if a contract is entered into.   
 
Each and every Proposer submitting a proposal specifically waives any right to withdraw or modify it, 
except as hereinafter provided.  Proposals may be withdrawn by written or telefax notice received at the 
Commission’s address for proposal delivery prior to the exact hour and date specified for proposal 
receipt.  However, if the Proposer chooses to attempt to provide such written notice by telefax 
transmission, the Commission shall not be responsible or liable for errors in telefax transmission.  A 
proposal may also be withdrawn in person by a Proposer or its authorized representative, provided its 
identity is made known and it signs a receipt for the proposal, but only if the withdrawal is made prior to 
the exact hour and date set for proposal receipt.  A proposal may only be modified by the submission of 
a new sealed proposal or submission of a sealed modification which complies with the requirements of 
this RFP. 
 
I-13. Economy of Preparation.  Proposals should be prepared simply and economically, providing a 
straightforward, concise description of the Proposer’s ability to meet the requirements of the RFP.  
 
I-14. Discussions for Clarification.  Proposers who submit proposals may be required to make an 
oral or written clarification of their proposals to the Issuing Office to ensure thorough mutual 
understanding and Proposer responsiveness to the solicitation requirements.  The Issuing Office will 
initiate requests for clarification. 
 
I-15. Best and Final Offers.  The Issuing Office reserves the right to conduct discussions with 
Proposers for the purpose of obtaining “best and final offers.”  To obtain best and final offers from 
Proposers, the Issuing Office may do one or more of the following:  a) enter into pre-selection 
negotiations; b) schedule oral presentations; and c) request revised proposals.  The Issuing Office will 
limit any discussions to responsible Proposers whose proposals the Issuing Office has determined to be 
reasonably susceptible of being selected for award. 
 
I-16. Prime Proposer Responsibilities.  The selected Proposer will be required to assume 
responsibility for all services offered in its proposal whether or not it produces them.  Further, the 
Commission will consider the selected Proposer to be the sole point of contact with regard to contractual 
matters. 
 
I-17. Proposal Contents. Proposals will be held in confidence and will not be revealed or discussed 
with competitors, unless disclosure is required to be made (i) under the provisions of any 
Commonwealth or United States statute or regulation; or (ii) by rule or order of any court of competent 
jurisdiction.  All material submitted with the proposal becomes the property of the Pennsylvania 
Turnpike Commission and may be returned only at the Commission’s option. Proposals submitted to the 
Commission may be reviewed and evaluated by any person other than competing Proposers at the 
discretion of the Commission. The Commission has the right to use any or all ideas presented in any 
proposal. Selection or rejection of the proposal does not affect this right. 

In accordance with the Pennsylvania Right-to-Know Law (RTKL), 65 P.S. § 67.707 (Production of 
Certain Records), Proposers shall identify any and all portions of their Proposal that contains 
confidential proprietary information or is protected by a trade secret.  Proposals shall include a written 
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statement signed by a representative of the company/firm identifying the specific portion(s) of the 
Proposal that contains the trade secret or confidential proprietary information.   

Proposers should note that “trade secrets” and “confidential proprietary information” are exempt from 
access under Section 708(b)(11) of the RTKL.  Section 102 defines both “trade secrets” and 
“confidential proprietary information” as follows:   
 

Confidential proprietary information: Commercial or financial information received by an 
agency: (1) which is privileged or confidential; and (2) the disclosure of which would cause substantial 
harm to the competitive position of the person that submitted the information. 

 
Trade secret: Information, including a formula, drawing, pattern, compilation, including a 

customer list, program, device, method, technique or process that: (1) derives independent economic 
value, actual or potential, from not being generally known to and not being readily ascertainable by 
proper means by other persons who can obtain economic value from its disclosure or use; and (2) is the 
subject of efforts that are reasonable under the circumstances to maintain its secrecy.   The term includes 
data processing software by an agency under a licensing agreement prohibiting disclosure.   

 
65 P.S. §67.102 (emphasis added). 

The Office of Open Records has determined that a third party must establish a trade secret based 
upon factors established by the appellate courts, which include the following:  

the extent to which the information is known outside of his business;  
the extent to which the information is known by employees and others in the business;  
the extent of measures taken to guard the secrecy of the information;  
the value of the information to his business and to competitors;  
the amount of effort or money expended in developing the information; and  
the ease of difficulty with which the information could be properly acquired  or duplicated by 

 others.  
 

See Crum v. Bridgestone/Firestone North Amer. Tire., 907 A.2d 578, 585 (Pa. Super. 2006). 
 

The Office of Open Records also notes that with regard to “confidential proprietary information 
the standard is equally high and may only be established when the party asserting protection shows that 
the information at issue is either ‘commercial’ or ‘financial’ and is privileged or confidential, and the 
disclosure would cause substantial competitive harm.” (emphasis in original).   
 
            For more information regarding the RTKL, visit the Office of Open Records’ website at 
www.openrecords.state.pa.us. 
 
I-18. Debriefing Conferences.  Proposers whose proposals are not selected will be notified of the 
name of the selected Proposer and given the opportunity to be debriefed, at the Proposer’s request.  The 
Issuing Office will schedule the time and location of the debriefing.  The Proposer will not be compared 
with other Proposers, other than the position of its proposal in relation to all other proposals.  
 
I-19. News Releases.  News releases pertaining to this project will not be made without prior 
Commission approval, and then only in coordination with the Issuing Office. 
 
I-20. Commission Participation.  Unless specifically noted in this section, Proposers must provide all 
services to complete the identified work. The Commission will make on-site office facilities available 
for auditing personnel.  Telephone(s) will be provided for work related use.  A Commission 
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representative will be available to assist in the scheduling (via Microsoft Outlook) of Commission 
personnel and conference rooms for meetings if necessary.  Personal Computers (PCs) and any project 
related software are the responsibility of the certified public accounting firm and will not be provided by 
the Commission.  
 
The independent audit will occur at the Commission’s Central Office Building.  The Commission offers 
flexible working hours to its employees with starting times ranging from 7:00 AM – 9:30 AM and 
ending times from 3:00 PM – 5:30 PM.  Core hours of operation are 8:30 AM – 4:30 PM Monday – 
Friday.  The selected independent auditor will need to plan and staff the audit accordingly so 
Commission employees are available to assist and answer questions.  
 
The Commission will complete certain schedules (client prepared schedules) as agreed upon by the 
Commission and the selected auditor.  The selected firm must meet with Commission representatives 
and agree upon the client prepared schedules by April 15 of each year.   
 
I-21. Cost Submittal.  The cost submittal shall be placed in a separately sealed envelope within the 
sealed proposal and kept separate from the technical submittal.  Failure to meet this requirement may 
result in disqualification of the proposal. 
 
I-22. Term of Contract.  The term of the contract will commence on the Effective Date (as defined 
below) and will end after three (3) years.  The Commission shall fix the Effective Date after the contract 
has been fully executed by the Contractor and by the Commission and all approvals required by 
Commission contracting procedures have been obtained.  
 
I-23. Proposer’s Representations and Authorizations.  Each Proposer by submitting its proposal 
understands, represents, and acknowledges that: 
 

a. All information provided by, and representations made by, the Proposer in the proposal 
are material and important and will be relied upon by the Issuing Office in awarding the 
contract(s).  Any misstatement, omission or misrepresentation shall be treated as 
fraudulent concealment from the Issuing Office of the true facts relating to the 
submission of this proposal.  A misrepresentation shall be punishable under 18 Pa. C.S. 
4904. 

 
b. The price(s) and amount of this proposal have been arrived at independently and without 

consultation, communication or agreement with any other Proposer or potential Proposer. 
 
c. Neither the price(s) nor the amount of the proposal, and neither the approximate price(s) 

nor the approximate amount of this proposal, have been disclosed to any other firm or 
person who is a Proposer or potential Proposer, and they will not be disclosed on or 
before the proposal submission deadline specified in the cover letter to this RFP. 

 
d. No attempt has been made or will be made to induce any firm or person to refrain from 

submitting a proposal on this contract, or to submit a proposal higher than this proposal, 
or to submit any intentionally high or noncompetitive proposal or other form of 
complementary proposal. 
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e. The proposal is made in good faith and not pursuant to any agreement or discussion with, 
or inducement from, any firm or person to submit a complementary or other 
noncompetitive proposal. 

 
f. To the best knowledge of the person signing the proposal for the Proposer, the Proposer, 

its affiliates, subsidiaries, officers, directors, and employees are not currently under 
investigation by any governmental agency and have not in the last four (4) years been 
convicted or found liable for any act prohibited by State or Federal law in any 
jurisdiction, involving conspiracy or collusion with respect to bidding or proposing on 
any public contract, except as disclosed by the Proposer in its proposal. 

 
g. To the best of the knowledge of the person signing the proposal for the Proposer and 

except as otherwise disclosed by the Proposer in its proposal, the Proposer has no 
outstanding, delinquent obligations to the Commonwealth including, but not limited to, 
any state tax liability not being contested on appeal or other obligation of the Proposer 
that is owed to the Commonwealth. 

 
h. The Proposer is not currently under suspension or debarment by the Commonwealth, or 

any other state, or the federal government, and if the Proposer cannot certify, then it shall 
submit along with the proposal a written explanation of why such certification cannot be 
made. 

 
i. The Proposer has not, under separate contract with the Issuing Office, made any 

recommendations to the Issuing Office concerning the need for the services described in 
the proposal or the specifications for the services described in the proposal. 

 
j. Each Proposer, by submitting its proposal, authorizes all Commonwealth agencies to 

release to the Commission information related to liabilities to the Commonwealth 
including, but not limited to, taxes, unemployment compensation, and workers’ 
compensation liabilities. 
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      PART II 
 

INFORMATION REQUIRED FROM PROPOSERS 
 
Proposals must be submitted in the format, including heading descriptions, outlined below.  To be 
considered, the proposal must respond to all requirements in this part of the RFP.  Any other information 
thought to be relevant, but not applicable to the enumerated categories, should be provided as an 
appendix to the proposal.  Each proposal shall consist of two (2) separately sealed submittals.  The 
submittals are as follows:  (i) Technical Submittal, in response to Part II-1 through II- 9 hereof; (ii) Cost 
Submittal, in response to Part II-10 hereof. 
 
The Commission reserves the right to request additional information which, in the Commission’s 
opinion, is necessary to assure that the Proposer’s competence, number of qualified employees, business 
organization, and financial resources are adequate to perform according to the RFP. 
 
The Commission may make such investigations as deemed necessary to determine the ability of the 
Proposer to perform the work, and the Proposer shall furnish to the Issuing Office all such information 
and data for this purpose as requested by the Commission.  The Commission reserves the right to reject 
any proposal if the evidence submitted by, or investigation of, such Proposer fails to satisfy the 
Commission that such Proposer is properly qualified to carry out the obligations of the agreement and to 
complete the work specified. 
 
II-1. Statement of the Problem.  State in succinct terms your understanding of the problem presented 
or the service required by this RFP. 
 
II-2. Management Summary.  Include a narrative description of the proposed effort and a list of the 
items to be delivered or services to be provided. 
 
II-3. Work Plan.  Describe in narrative form your technical plan for accomplishing the work.  Use the 
task descriptions in Part V of this RFP for the fiscal year 2011 audit as your reference point.  Also 
explain your approach for subsequent audits (fiscal years 2012 and 2013) as well as you approach to the 
additional auditing services and guidance activities discussed in Section I-4.  Highlight the differences 
between the initial engagement and subsequent engagements.  Modifications of the task descriptions are 
permitted; however, reasons for changes should be fully explained.  Indicate the number of personhours 
allocated to each task.   
 
II-4. Prior Experience.  Include a narrative description of audit experience and qualifications.  
Specific experience with similar organizations (proprietary-type component units, state and local 
governments, etc.), SAP Enterprise Resource Software (including ACL, Direct Link or other auditing 
software) and implementation of required GASBs should be included.  Experience should be related to 
audits performed by individuals who will be assigned to this project as well as that of your company.  
Previous audit engagements referred to should be identified and the name of the customer shown, 
including the address, and telephone number of the responsible official of the customer, company, or 
agency who may be contacted.  Include a minimum of three (3) references 
 
II-5. Personnel.  Include the number and names where practicable, of auditors (staff, in-charges, 
managers, partners, etc.) who will be engaged in the work. Indicate the responsibilities each will have in 
this audit and how long each has been with your company and in their current roles. Include a resume or 
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similar document indicating the level of education and experience for each auditor who will be assigned 
to this engagement. If you are unable to identify the personnel who will be assigned to this work, please 
provide a list of requirements (education and experience) needed to obtain each level (staff, in-charge, 
manager, partner, etc.) in your organization. Identify subcontractors you intend to use and the services 
they will perform. 
 
II-6. Auditor Information. 
 
All firms submitting proposals should state: 
 
 • Whether they meet applicable Pennsylvania State licensing requirements. 
 • Their policies regarding notification of changes in key personnel. 
 • Whether they are independent, as defined by applicable auditing standards. 
 • Any relationship your firm has with the Pennsylvania Turnpike Commission. 
 • Whether they have been the object of any disciplinary action in the Commonwealth of 
    Pennsylvania during the past four years 
 
II-7. DBE/MBE/WBE Participation.    The Turnpike Commission is committed to the inclusion of 
disadvantaged, minority, and woman firms in contracting opportunities.  Responding firms shall clearly 
identify DBE/MBE/WBE firms, expected to participate in this contract, in their Proposal.  Proposed 
DBE/MBE/WBE firms must be certified by the Pennsylvania Department of General Services 
(www.dgs.state.pa.us ) or the Pennsylvania Unified Certification Program (www.paucp.com ) at the time of 
the submission of the proposal. While D/M/WBE participation is not a requirement for this RFP, inclusion 
of D/M/WBEs will be a factor in the evaluation determination.  If further information is desired 
concerning DBE/MBE/WBE participation, direct inquiries to the Pennsylvania Turnpike Commission’s 
Contract Administration Department by calling (717) 939-9551 Ext. 4241.   
 
II-8. Locations.  List your firm’s total number of locations and employees and the number of 
locations and employees in Pennsylvania. Also, please list the business address(es) of the personnel who 
will be assigned to the engagement. 
 
II-9. Peer Review.  A copy of your firm’s most recent peer review report should be provided with the 
technical submittal. 
 
II-10. Cost Submittal.  The information requested in this section shall constitute your cost submittal. 
The Cost Submittal shall be placed in a separate sealed envelope within the sealed proposal, 
separate from the technical submittal. 
 
Proposers should not include any assumptions in their cost submittals. If the proposer includes 
assumptions in its cost submittal, the Issuing Office may reject the proposal.  The cost submittal should 
list the proposed fixed fee for annual audit services which includes the audits of both the Pennsylvania 
Turnpike Commission’s Annual Financial and OPEB Trust financial statements for the three fiscal years 
ending May 31, 2011, 2012 and 2013 respectively. The cost submittal should include a detailed 
itemization (costs for each audit for each year should be clearly listed) of the proposed fixed fee. 
 

a. Direct Labor Costs.  Itemize to show the following for each category of personnel with 
a different rate per hour: 
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(1) Category:  e.g., partner, project manager, analyst, senior auditor, research 
associate. 

 
(2) Estimated hours. 
 
(3) Rate per hour. 
 
(4) Total cost for each category and for all direct labor costs. 
 

b. Labor Overhead.  Specify what is included and rate used.  If there is no labor overhead 
rate in your proposal, so state. 

 
c. Travel and Subsistence.  Itemize transportation, lodging and meals per diem costs 
 separately.  Travel and subsistence costs must not exceed current Conus rates and IRS 
 approved mileage rates.  If there are no travel and subsistence in your proposal, so state.   
 
d. Cost of Supplies and Materials.  Itemize.  If there are no supplies and materials in your  
 proposal, so state. 

 
e. Other Direct Costs.  Itemize.  If there are no other direct costs in your proposal, so state. 
 

 f. Total Cost.  List the sum of the costs in a. – e. The sum should equal the proposed fixed  
  fee for  each fiscal year. 
 
The Commission may seek guidance on accounting issues and may require additional services to be 
performed during the term of this engagement. Please describe guidance/services that are considered 
part of your fixed fee proposal and guidance/services that are out of scope, such as those additional 
services discussed in Section I-4 Problem Statement above. Guidance and services determined to be out 
of scope, will be compensated at the standard hourly rates set forth in a. above. 
 
The cost submittal should describe your firm’s standard progress billing policy/procedures. The 
Pennsylvania Turnpike Commission will determine if your standard procedure is acceptable. The 
Commission and the selected Proposer will agree upon final contract terms. 
 
Any costs not provided in the cost proposal will be assumed as no charge to the 
Commission. 
 
The selected Proposer shall only perform work on this contract after the Effective 
Date is affixed and the fully-executed contract sent to the selected Proposer.  The 
Commission shall issue a written Notice to Proceed to the selected Proposer 
authorizing the work to begin on a date which is on or after the Effective Date.  The 
selected Proposer shall not start the performance of any work prior to the date set 
forth in the Notice of Proceed and the Commission shall not be liable to pay the 
selected Proposer for any service or work performed or expenses incurred before 
the date set forth in the Notice to Proceed.  No Commission employee has the 
authority to verbally direct the commencement of any work under this Contract. 
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PART  III 
 

CRITERIA  FOR  SELECTION 
 
III-1. Mandatory Responsiveness Requirements.  To be eligible for selection, a proposal should be 
(a) timely received from a Proposer; (b) properly signed by the Proposer; and (c) formatted such that all 
cost data is kept separate from and not included in the Technical Submittal. 
 
III-2. Proposals will be reviewed and evaluated by a committee of qualified personnel selected by the 
Commission.  This committee will recommend for selection the proposal that most closely meets the 
requirements of the RFP and satisfies Commission needs.  Award will only be made to a Proposer 
determined to be responsive and responsible in accordance with Commonwealth Management Directive 
215.9, Contractor Responsibility Program. 
 
III-3. The following criteria will be used, in order of relative importance from the highest to the lowest, 
in evaluating each proposal:   
 

a. Understanding the Problem.  This refers to the Proposer’s understanding of the 
Commission needs that generated the RFP, of the Commission’s objectives in asking for the services or 
undertaking the study, and of the nature and scope of the work involved. 

 
b. Proposer Qualifications.  This refers to the ability of the Proposer to meet the terms of 

the RFP, especially the time constraint and the quality, relevancy, and recency of studies and projects 
completed by the Proposer.  This also includes the Proposer’s financial ability to undertake a project of 
this size. 

 
c. Personnel Qualifications.  This refers to the competence of professional personnel who 

would be assigned to the job by the Proposer.  Qualifications of professional personnel will be measured 
by experience and education, with particular reference to experience on studies/services similar to that 
described in the RFP.  Particular emphasis is placed on the qualifications of the project manager. 

 
d. Soundness of Approach.  Emphasis here is on the techniques for collecting and 

analyzing data, sequence and relationships of major steps, and methods for managing the service/project.  
Of equal importance is whether the technical approach is completely responsive to all written 
specifications and requirements contained in the RFP and if it appears to meet Commission objectives. 

 
e. Cost.  While this area may be weighted heavily, it will not normally be the deciding 

factor in the selection process. The Commission reserves the right to select a proposal based upon all the 
factors listed above, and will not necessarily choose the firm offering the best price. The Commission 
will select the firm with the proposal that best meets its needs, at the sole discretion of the Commission.  

 
f. DBE/MBE/WBE Participation.  This refers to the inclusion of D/M/WBE firms, as 

described in Part II-7, and the extent to which they are expected to participate in this contract.  
Participation will be measured in terms of total dollars committed or percentage of total contract amount 
to certified D/M/WBE firms. 
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PART IV 

BACKGROUND INFORMATION 
 

IV-1. Background. 
 
The Pennsylvania Turnpike Commission was created as an instrumentality of the Commonwealth of 
Pennsylvania on May 21, 1937, with powers to construct, operate, and maintain the Turnpike System, 
and to issue Turnpike revenue bonds, repayable solely from tolls and other Commission revenues. The 
Commission is considered a proprietary-type component unit of the Commonwealth of Pennsylvania 
and presents its financial statements on the accrual basis with a capital maintenance measurement focus. 
There are no other entities that would potentially qualify for inclusion in the Pennsylvania Turnpike 
Commission’s financial reporting entity under accounting principles generally accepted in the United 
States. 
 
The Commission consists of five members, one of whom is the Commonwealth of Pennsylvania’s 
Secretary of Transportation. The other four are appointed for four-year terms by the Governor with the 
approval of a two-thirds majority of the Senate. 
 
A copy of the Commission’s fiscal 2010 audited basic financial statements is attached to provide 
additional information to interested vendors. 
 
IV-2. Financial Management System and Availability of Commission Accounting Records and 
Data. 
 
All Commission generated accounting data will be made available to the Independent Auditor during the 
engagement. The Commission currently uses the SAP ERP (Enterprise Resource Planning) software 
suite (version ECC 6.0). The SAP ERP software suite includes the following modules: 
 

 General Ledger  
 Accounts Payable  
 Accounts Receivable  
 Fixed Assets  
 Treasury  
 Project Systems  
 Cost Center Accounting  
 Profit Center Accounting  
 Materials Management  
 Purchasing  
 Supplier Relationship Management  
 Enterprise Buyer Professional  
 Plant Maintenance  
 Fleet Management 
 Employee Self- Service Workflow 
 Business Warehouse 
 Benefits  
 Personnel Administration  
 Personnel Development  
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 Payroll  
 Time Entry  
 Cross Application Timesheets  
 Organization Management  
 Leave Management  
 Personnel Cost Planning and Simulation  
 Cross Application Timesheet  
 Employee Self- Service  
 Manager Self-Service  
 SAP Portals 
 CRM- Call center and marketing 
 Workflow 

 
Pennsylvania Turnpike Commission OPEB Trust: 
 
The Financial statements of the Pennsylvania Turnpike OPEB Trust are prepared in Excel using 
statements from the Custodian.  Following is some additional information about the Trust.     
 
The Pennsylvania Turnpike Commission (the “Employer/Plan Sponsor”) has established the 
Pennsylvania Turnpike Commission OPEB Trust (the “Trust”). The Trust is intended 
to provide for funding of non-pension postemployment benefits for employees who 
meet the age and service requirements outlined in the Employer plan documents. 
 
The Pennsylvania Turnpike Commission maintains a welfare plan program (the “Plan”), the purpose of 
which is to provide medical benefits for eligible retirees and their dependents who are in need of 
medical care. The Plan is a single employer, defined benefit plan. The Plan is not included in the 
financial statements of a public employee retirement system. 
 
Plan benefit provisions and employee contributions, which are retained by the Employer, are 
established and may be amended by the Employer. The Plan provides certain postemployment 
medical, prescription drug, dental and vision benefits to management employees who have 
reached 20 years of service and are under age 60; benefit eligibility changes from 20 to 10 years 
for retirees 60 years of age or older. The Plan provides certain postemployment medical and 
prescription drug benefits to union employees who have reached 20 years of service and are 
under age 60; benefit eligibility changes from 20 to 10 years for retirees 60 years of age or older. 
 
Membership consists of the following as of March 1, 2010, the date of the last actuarial valuation: 
Retirees and beneficiaries receiving benefits      957 
Fully eligible active plan participants      576 
Other active plan participants     1,049 
Total participant count      2,582 
 
The Commission approved a Retiree Medical Trust Funding Policy whereby the Commission anticipates 
approving an annual contribution to the Trust in the amount of the Annual Required Contribution as 
determined by the Commission’s actuary during the approval of each Operating Budget. 
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The Trust is administered by the Trustees. PNC Bank serves as custodian/third-party administrator of 
the assets of the Trust. Payments from the Trust are made by the custodian at the direction of the 
Trustees 
 
The Pennsylvania Turnpike Commission OPEB Trust is accounted for as a fiduciary fund. Accordingly, 
the basic financial statements are prepared using the accrual basis of accounting in conformity with 
accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America for governmental entities as 
prescribed or permitted by the Governmental Accounting Standards Board (GASB). The Trust 
implemented GASB 43, Financial Reporting for Postemployment Benefit Plans Other Than Pension 
Plans, in 2009 as part of its initial basic financial statement presentation. 
 
Employer contributions to the Trust are recognized when due and the Employer has made a formal 
commitment to provide the contributions. Claims are recognized when due and payable in accordance 
with the terms of the Plan. 
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PART V 
 

WORK  STATEMENT 
V-1. Objectives. 
 
It is the intent of the Commission to procure the services of a qualified independent certified public 
accounting firm to audit the Commission’s financial statements and perform related services for fiscal 
years ending May 31, 2011, 2012 and 2013. 
 
V-2. Nature and Scope of the Project. 
 
The selected Independent Auditor will perform annual financial audits of the Commission’s records for 
the fiscal years ending May 31, 2011, 2012 and 2013.  
 
The selected firm will ensure the Commission’s financial statements, required supplementary 
information, and notes to the financial statements conform to all applicable GASB pronouncements and 
requirements and that all of the GFOA’s comments and suggestions for improvement in financial 
reporting techniques from the previous year’s CAFR have been appropriately incorporated into the 
financial statements. 
 
The audits will be conducted in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the United 
States as set forth by the American Institute of Certified Public Accountants. 
 
The Independent Auditor will express an opinion on the fair presentation of the Commission’s financial 
statements. The auditor’s opinion is to include the scope of the examination, the fact that the audit was 
performed in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the United States, an opinion as 
to whether the statements conform to generally accepted accounting principles and a statement on 
procedures applied to supplementary information required by the Government Accounting Standards 
Board. 
 
A management letter is required and should include statements on audit findings and recommendations 
affecting the financial statements, internal control, accounting system, legality of actions, instances of 
noncompliance with laws and regulations and any other material matters. A draft of the letter is to be 
reviewed by the Pennsylvania Turnpike Commission’s Director of Operations Review. The Independent 
Auditor will review and perform limited procedures on the Commission’s Management’s Discussion 
and Analysis and ensure it is prepared in accordance with GASB 34. 
 
The Independent Auditor will assist the Commission in its preparation of the Comprehensive Annual 
Financial Report (CAFR) for submission to the Government Finance Officers Association’s (GFOA) 
Certificate of Achievement for Excellence in Financial Reporting Program. Assistance will include: 
reviewing the CAFR to ensure all GFOA requirements are met; reviewing the CAFR application; 
assisting with the preparation and reviewing responses to the GFOA’s previous year’s comments and 
suggestions for improvement in financial reporting techniques; completing final word processing and 
production of the CAFR. 
 
The Independent Auditor shall present to the Commission’s Audit Committee the results of the annual 
audit.  
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V-3. Time Requirements, Deliverables and Commission Resources. 
 
Each fiscal year’s audit shall include routine entrance and exit conferences. The selected Independent 
Auditor will develop an audit program at the beginning of each fiscal year’s audit. The audit program 
will include a timeline and milestones for completing the audit. The timeline and milestones must be 
reviewed with and approved by the Commission’s Director of Operations Review or his designee. For 
the initial audit (fiscal 2011), the timing of this meeting will be agreed upon at a later date by the 
selected vendor and the Commission, but it will occur no later than March 31, 2011. For subsequent 
years, the review meeting will occur on or before April 15th. 
 
The Commission will make on-site office facilities available for auditing personnel.  Telephone(s) will 
be provided for work related use. A Commission representative will be available to assist in the 
scheduling (via Microsoft Outlook) of Commission resources and  conference rooms for meetings if 
necessary. Personal Computers (PCs) and any project related software are the responsibility of the 
auditing firm and will not be provided by the Commission. 
 

 The independent audit will occur at the Commission’s Central Office Building. The Commission 
offers flexible working hours to its employees with starting times ranging from 7:00 AM – 9:30 
AM and ending times from 3:00 PM – 5:30 PM. Core hours of operation are 8:30 AM – 4:30 PM 
Monday – Friday. The selected Independent Auditor will need to plan and staff the audit 
accordingly so Commission employees are available to assist and answer questions. 

 
 The Commission will complete certain schedules (client prepared schedules) as agreed upon by 

the Commission and the selected Independent Auditor. The selected auditor must meet with 
Commission representatives and agree upon the client prepared schedules no later than April 30 
of each fiscal year. The Commission will complete the majority of the client prepared schedules 
by the first business day following the July 31 each year. 

 
 The selected firm will complete preliminary fieldwork by May 31st of each fiscal year. The 

Commission is anticipating an April 1, 2011 start date for the fiscal 2011 audit. Due to fiscal 
year end closing, Commission employees will have limited availability during the month of June 
to address audit questions. 

 
The Independent Auditor will conduct periodic meetings with the Director of Operations Review for the 
purpose of discussing the audit status and progress in relation to the audit program (timeline and 
milestones) as well as any issues identified during the performance of the audit. The Independent 
Auditor will also prepare written progress reports. The progress reports will address the audit timeline, 
preliminary findings, and any major audit issues that the firm believes to be material. The frequency of 
the progress reports will be determined during the entrance conference. 
 
The Independent Auditor will complete the audit and provide the Commission with an electronic copy 
of the typed Audit Report (audited financial statements) no later than August 15th following the close of 
each fiscal year. The auditor will also provide 20 printed, bound copies of the Audit Report no later than 
August 22nd following the close of each fiscal year. 
 
The Audit Report will include the following: title page; table of contents; scope, opinion and other 
necessary paragraphs, Management’s Discussion and Analysis; basic financial statements and additional 
information required to conform to all applicable GASB pronouncements and requirements. 
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The basic financial statements will include: balance sheets; statements of revenues, expenses, and 
changes in net assets; statements of cash flows; notes to financial statements; and any additional 
information required to conform to all applicable GASB pronouncements and requirements. 
 
The Independent Auditor will mail the completed CAFR package (application, responses to previous 
year’s comments and suggestions, and CAFR) to the Commission no later than November 20th following 
the close of each fiscal year. The auditor will also provide the Commission with an electronic file copy 
and 20 printed, bound copies of the CAFR by November 20th following the close of each fiscal year. 
 
The Independent Auditor will retain all working papers for a minimum of five (5) years after the 
issuance of the respective fiscal year Audit Report. Such working papers will be available for 
examination by authorized representatives of the Pennsylvania Turnpike Commission. 
 



Addendum No. 1  

RFP #10-10210-2800  
 

Annual Independent Audit Services 
 

Following are the answers to questions submitted in response to the above referenced 
RFP up to and including questions submitted during the Mandatory Pre-Proposal 
Conference on November 8, 2010.  All of the questions have been listed verbatim, as 
received by the Pennsylvania Turnpike Commission.  
 
 
1.  Who takes the lead in preparing the financial statements? 
 
 The Commission’s Accounting and Financial Reporting Office.  
  
2. Is there assistance provided to the audit firm from the internal audit group and 

if so how many hours and in what audit areas? 
 

Yes. The Commission does not, however, have an accurate estimate of hours 
available for internal audit staff assistance. During recent annual financial audits, 
Operations Review Department staff performed trust indenture compliance, cash 
disbursement, payroll and unrecorded liabilities testing while the Toll Revenue 
Audit Department performed internal audits of key processes in the E-ZPass 
Customer Service Center and Violations Processing Center that could impact the 
basic financial statement audit as determined by the Independent Auditor.  

  
3. Who is the Actuary for the OPEB Plan? 

 
Ernst & Young, LLP was the actuary for the March 1, 2010; March 1, 2008 and 
February 28, 2006 actuarial valuations for the OPEB Plan.  

  
4. How many audit adjustments were made in the prior audit? 
 

The Commission is not aware of any significant audit adjustments made in the 
prior audit. 
 

5. What were the prior year audit fees? 
 

The fees for the fiscal 2010 audit services are $134,398. This amount does not 
include fees for the 2010 audit of the OPEB Trust.  The fee for the initial OPEB 
Trust audit for FY09 was $38,000. 
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6. How is the Turnpike Commission addressing the going concern issue going 
forward? 

 
The FY10 audited financial statements provide disclosure regarding the 
Commission’s various obligations in the Management Discussion and Analysis 
portion of the statements.  In addition there is a detailed discussion in the 
commitments and contingencies section in the notes to the financial statements 
(Note 8) regarding the Commission’s commitments under the Act 44 Lease and 
Funding Agreement.  The audited statements address the Commission’s current as 
well as projected financial obligations. 

  
7. Is there any new debt issued in the audit period? 

 
 The Commission does plan to issue additional debt during the audit period. 
  
8. Who takes the lead in the implementation of new GASBs? 
 
 The Commission’s Accounting and Financial Reporting Office 
  
9. Is there a separate Actuary report for the self insurance liabilities? 

 
 Yes, there will be separate actuarial reports for self insurance liabilities.  

 
10. What type of audits does the Operations Review Internal Audit Department 

perform? 
  

The Operations Review Department performs all non-toll revenue related 
financial, compliance, technology and performance audits. In addition, this 
department also performs a variety of internal consulting activities such as 
contingency planning and other projects as requested by senior management. 

 
11. Is there a SAS 70 report for TransCore? 
 
 No. 
  
12. Is there any change in the status of making Rt 80 a toll road? 
 
 Not at this time. 
  
13. What type of assistance does the engineering firm provided pertaining the 

recording of Capital Assets?   
 

The Accounting staff works with the Commission’s Engineering Department and 
other Commission Departments to determine when construction of assets is 
substantially complete and should be placed in service.   
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14. Who are the Interest Rate Managers for the SWAP transactions? 
  

The specific nature of this question is unclear.  Public Financial Management 
(PFM) was the Commission’s swap advisor during the FY10 audit period.  
Separately, the Commission currently has twenty-one interest rate swap 
agreements with various counterparties among three credits. 

 
15. Can we do interim work in January and February? 
 
 The successful provider may begin work once the contract is executed. 
  
16. Does the Turnpike Commission maintain narrative documentation for its 

processes (i.e. ticket toll collections expenditure cycle etc.) 
  

The Commission maintains narrative documentation for its key financial 
processes.  

 
17. Is there any material litigation against the Turnpike Commission? 
  

The Commission is covered by Act 152 approved September 28, 1978 which 
provides for a limited waiver of sovereign immunity by the Commonwealth.  
Damages for any loss are limited to $250,000 for each person or $1,000,000 in the 
aggregate.   

 
There are currently approximately 92 open cases for personal injury and/or 
property damage pending against the Commission, none of which individually or 
in the aggregate are deemed to expose the Commission to a material risk of loss.   

 
18. Is there a physical inventory taken at year end? 
 
 No. Inventory cycle counts are performed on a periodic basis. 
  
19. When will final trial balances be available?   
 

The Commission will work with the successful provider to determine a schedule 
for providing a final trial balance and other client prepared schedules. Although 
the Commission can typically provide a preliminary trial balance fairly early, we 
continue to post entries throughout the audit. As a result, the final trial balance 
usually is not available until the end of the audit.  
 

20. What have been the fees paid to your current auditors under the current 
contract? 

 
 Fiscal Year Ending May 31, 2008  $134,883 
 Fiscal Year Ending May 31, 2009  $168,483* 
 Fiscal Year Ending May 31, 2010  $134,398 
 
  * includes 2009 OPEB Trust audit fee of $38,000  
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21. Will there be any audit assistance from the Commission?  Internal Audit? 
  
 Please refer to question number 2. 
 
22.     Who prepares the financial statements?  The Commission or the auditors? 
 

The Commission’s Accounting and Financial Reporting group prepares the 
financial statements.  However, the Commission looks to the auditors for 
guidance to make sure all GASB requirements are being met.   

 
23.  What is the timing of your hard close of books in order for the auditors to come 

in and perform their procedures timely? 
 

Please refer to question number 19. 
 

24   Have there been any management letter comments and can they be shared with 
the group? 

 
The Commission has not received the management letter comments for the fiscal 
year 2010 audit. We have received management letter comments for audit periods 
prior to FY10 and will share these comments with the successful firm once the 
contract is executed. 

 
25. What is the magnitude of adjustments brought to the attention of management 

by the auditors and are there adjustments that have been passed on?   
 
 Please refer to question number 4. 
 
26. Any information with regard to the number of hours and people the current 

auditor employs to complete your audits? 
 
 The Commission does not have this information. 
 
27. What were the fees paid for the 2009 and 2010 audit? 
 
 Please refer to question number 20. 
 
28. Were any additional services provided by the audit firm during the last contract, 

besides the audits outlined in the RFP? Do you anticipate any additional 
services being requested during the contract term? 

 
 The audit firm is currently completing a Financial Process Risk Assessment. The 

Commission anticipates requesting supplemental and/or advisory services on an 
as-needed basis.  
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29. Please clarify the due dates for the financial statement audit. On page 15 of the 
RFP it states that the Audit Report is due no later than August 22nd, but on page 
16 it state that the CAFR is not due until November 20th.  Auditor’s opinion 
date on the 2010 CAFR was in October.  
 
At this time, the Commission issues both Basic Financial Statements and a 
Comprehensive Annual Financial Report.  The Basic Financial Statements are 
“inserted” into the CAFR.  Therefore, the date of the audit opinion should be the 
same in both reports.  The FY 2010 basic financial statements have an opinion 
date of October 14, 2010; the audit opinion in the FY 2010 CAFR (which will be 
issued in November 2010) will be dated October 14, 2010.   

 
The due dates in the RFP are accurate as stated. 

  
30. Is the current contract being subcontracted and what firm is providing those 

services?  Also what percentage of the current contract is performed by the 
DBE? 

 
 No. 
 
31. Who will be the members of the committee reviewing the RFP?  

The Commission’s Director of Operations Review, Chief Financial Officer, 
Assistant Chief Financial Officer, Manager of Investment and Debt Accounting, 
Director of Toll Revenue Audit and the Information Systems Security Officer. 
This committee will record the strengths and weaknesses of each proposal and 
will forward these findings, along with the price proposals to the Audit 
Committee. The Audit Committee, which consists of the four sitting 
Commissioners will then select the successful firm. 
  

32. What are most significant factors that board/committee will rely on to make its  
decision regarding selection of auditors? 
  
Please refer to Part III, Section III-3 of the RFP. 

33. Typically, how many weeks are the auditors on-site and how many staff are on-
site during those weeks. 

 
 Typically, on-site test work is performed between July and the end of August with 

1 to 4 external audit staff members on-site. 
 
34. How many adjustments did the prior auditor propose?  What was the nature of 

the adjustments?  
 
 Please refer to question number 4.  
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35. Who is responsible for preparing the financial statements? 

 Please refer to question number 22. 

36. How many years have they been performing this function?  

 Please refer to question number 22. 

37. Has there been any turnover in the accounting function recently?  

 No. 

38. Are there any significant economic risk areas management is currently 
concerned with? 

 
 Please refer to question number 6. 

39. Where there any disagreements with the legacy auditors? 

 No. 

40. What new or unusual transactions such as sales of capital assets, new financing 
structures, or transactions planned for 2011? 

 
 No new or unusual transactions are currently contemplated for FY11.  However, 

the Commission will be implementing new Accounting Pronouncements as 
required. 

 
41. When are the books closed and ready for audit? 

 Refer to question number 19. 

42. When have interim procedures typically been performed? 

 The Commission will work with the selected provider regarding a schedule for 
completing interim work.  The successful provider may begin work once the 
contract is executed. 

 
43. Have information technology auditors typically been involved with the audit? 

What was the extent and timing of the IT specialist’s work? 
 
 Information Technology auditors have been involved to document existing 

electronic controls regarding SAP and Toll Revenue systems. 
 
44. What was the audit fee for the prior three years? 

 Please refer to question number 20. 
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45. Were there any prior year audit findings or management comments? 

 Please refer to questions number 4 and 24. 

46. What, if any, additional work/projects were current auditors asked to perform in 
past 12-18 months?  What was general scope and fees? 

 
Please refer to question number 28. The fixed fee for this Risk Assessment is 
$100,000. 
 

47. How many new bond issues/refinancing/swaps have occurred/do you anticipate 
to occur during the audit period? What is the breakdown? 

 
To date, during the audit period, the PTC has issued one mainline senior 
refunding, one mainline senior new money issue and two mainline subordinate 
new money issues (including special revenue bonds). We anticipate one mainline 
senior refunding and one mainline subordinate new money issues during the 
remainder of the audit period. We may execute new interest rate swaps or amend 
existing interest rate swaps depending upon market conditions. 
 

48. Has a CAFR been prepared for 2010? 2009? 2008? 

The CAFR for 2010 is being prepared. The Commission is restating its 2009 
CAFRs which include restatements for fiscal year 2008.  The 2009 CAFR will be 
reposted to the website once it is restated. The Commission does not plan to 
repost the 2008 CAFR. 
 

49. When can we get copies of the OPEB Trust statements?  

The Commission will provide these statements to the successful firm once the 
contract is executed. 
 

50. Please clarify due dates. Part I- Section I-4 says 8/15 due dates for financial 
statements. Was the October opinion date due to unforeseen circumstances or is 
the 8/15 date a “stretch goal”? 

 
Since the successful firm may begin work in January/February and the 
Commission's fiscal year end date is May 31, we consider 8/15 to be a realistic 
date for completion of the audited financial statements. 
 

51. Since a SAS70 is not available for operations performed by TransCore, are 
controls assessments performed by either PTC or independent auditors? 

 
Control assessments are performed by the Toll Revenue Audit Department. In 
addition, an annual PCI assessment is performed by an outside vendor. Also, 
quarterly network scans are performed by an outside vendor. 
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52. Copy of the 2009 OPEB Trust Statement. 

Please refer to question number 49.  

 

All other terms, conditions and requirements of the original RFP dated October 18, 2010 
remain unchanged unless modified by this Addendum.  
 






	RFP10-10210-2800 - Final - Annual Independent Audit Services + Attachment
	Addendum 1 - Q&A
	Addendum 1 - Q&A
	Preproposal Sign In Sheet





  
 


 


B A S I C  F I N A N C I A L  S T A T E M E N T S  


Pennsylvania Turnpike Commission  
A Component Unit of the Commonwealth of Pennsylvania 
Years Ended May 31, 2010 and 2009 
With Report of Independent Auditors 


 
Ernst & Young LLP


  


 







  
1006-1164688 


Pennsylvania Turnpike Commission 
A Component Unit of the Commonwealth of Pennsylvania 


Basic Financial Statements 


Years Ended May 31, 2010 and 2009 


Contents 


Report of Independent Auditors.......................................................................................................1 


Management’s Discussion and Analysis .........................................................................................3 


Audited Basic Financial Statements 


Balance Sheets ...............................................................................................................................16 
Statements of Revenues, Expenses, and Changes in Net Assets ...................................................18 
Statements of Cash Flows ..............................................................................................................19 
Notes to Financial Statements ........................................................................................................21 


Required Supplementary Information 


Schedule of Funding Progress – Postemployment Healthcare Benefits ........................................84 
 







  
1006-1164688 1


Report of Independent Auditors 


The Commissioners 
Pennsylvania Turnpike Commission 


We have audited the accompanying basic financial statements of the Pennsylvania Turnpike 
Commission, a component unit of the Commonwealth of Pennsylvania, as of May 31, 2010 and 
2009, and for the years then ended as listed in the table of contents. These financial statements 
are the responsibility of the Pennsylvania Turnpike Commission’s management. Our 
responsibility is to express an opinion on these financial statements based on our audits. 


We conducted our audits in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the United 
States. Those standards require that we plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance 
about whether the financial statements are free of material misstatement. We were not engaged 
to perform an audit of the Commission’s internal control over financial reporting. Our audits 
included consideration of internal control over financial reporting as a basis for designing audit 
procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an 
opinion on the effectiveness of the Commission’s internal control over financial reporting. 
Accordingly, we express no such opinion. An audit also includes examining, on a test basis, 
evidence supporting the amounts and disclosures in the financial statements, assessing the 
accounting principles used and significant estimates made by management, and evaluating the 
overall financial statement presentation. We believe that our audits provide a reasonable basis for 
our opinion. 


In our opinion, the financial statements referred to above present fairly, in all material respects, 
the financial position of the Pennsylvania Turnpike Commission as of May 31, 2010 and 2009, 
and the changes in its financial position and its cash flows for the years then ended, in 
conformity with U.S. generally accepted accounting principles. 


As discussed in Note 2 to the accompanying financial statements, the 2009 financial statements 
have been restated to correct errors in depreciation of capital assets, the classification of capital 
contributions, and the classification of net assets invested in capital assets, net of related debt. 


As more fully explained in Note 8, the Commission has committed to making significant 
payments under a Lease and Funding Agreement as required under the terms of Act 44. The 
Commission’s ability to make such payments is dependent on its continuing capability to issue 
bonds to fund such payments and ultimately to raise tolls sufficient to repay its bonded debt. 


  


Ernst & Young LLP
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Management’s Discussion and Analysis and the required schedule of funding progress for 
postemployment healthcare benefits are not a required part of the basic financial statements but 
are supplementary information required by the Governmental Accounting Standards Board. We 
have applied certain limited procedures, which consisted principally of inquiries of management 
regarding the methods of measurement and presentation of the required supplementary 
information. However, we did not audit the information and express no opinion on it. 


ey 
October 14, 2010 


 


 


 


A member firm of Ernst & Young Global Limited







  
1006-1164688 3


Pennsylvania Turnpike Commission  
A Component Unit of the Commonwealth of Pennsylvania 


Management’s Discussion and Analysis 


May 31, 2010 


The management of the Pennsylvania Turnpike Commission (hereinafter referred to as the 
Commission) offers this narrative overview and analysis of the Commission’s financial activities 
for the year ended May 31, 2010, which should be read in conjunction with the Commission’s 
basic financial statements. 


Overview of the Basic Financial Statements 


This discussion and analysis is intended to serve as an introduction to the Commission’s basic 
financial statements. While the Commission is considered a component unit of the 
Commonwealth of Pennsylvania, it is also an enterprise fund. Therefore, the Commission’s 
financial statements are presented in a manner similar to a private-sector business and have been 
prepared according to accounting principles generally accepted in the United States (GAAP). All 
of the current year’s revenues are recorded when earned and expenses are recorded as they are 
incurred, regardless of when the cash is received or disbursed. 


The balance sheet presents information on all of the Commission’s assets and liabilities, with the 
difference being reported as net assets. Over time, increases or decreases in net assets serve as a 
relative indicator of the change in financial position of the Commission. 


The statement of revenues, expenses, and changes in net assets shows the result of the 
Commission’s total operations during the fiscal year and reflects both operating and 
nonoperating activities. Changes in net assets (increases or decreases) reflect the current fiscal 
period’s operating impact upon the overall financial position of the Commission. 


The statement of cash flows provides a detailed analysis of all sources and uses of cash. The 
direct method of cash flows is presented, ending with a reconciliation of operating income to net 
cash provided by operating activities. The statement of cash flows is divided into the following 
activities sections—operating, investing, capital and related financing, and noncapital financing. 


Notes to the basic financial statements contain supplemental information and offer explanations 
to the basic financial statements. The notes are intended to assist the reader in understanding the 
Commission’s basic financial statements. 
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Financial Analysis 


Comparative Condensed Balance Sheets 


 May 31 
 2010 2009 2008 
  (Restated)1 
 (In Thousands) 
Assets    
Current assets $ 834,547 $ 745,690 $ 909,211 
Long-term investments 627,767 311,219 362,065 
Capital assets, net of accumulated depreciation 4,390,675 4,066,209 3,746,191 
Other assets 66,874 50,512 38,819 
Total assets $ 5,919,863 $ 5,173,630 $ 5,056,286 
    
Liabilities and net assets    
Current liabilities $ 488,003 $ 955,938 $ 214,790 
Debt, net of unamortized premium and 


unamortized refunding losses 6,244,919 4,047,102 3,755,287 
Other noncurrent liabilities 52,383 39,851 37,880 
Total liabilities 6,785,305 5,042,891 4,007,957 
    
Net assets:    


Invested in capital assets, net of related debt 1,028,238 1,186,269 1,287,419 
Restricted 332,110 306,402 278,802 
Unrestricted (deficit) (2,225,790) (1,361,932) (517,892)


Total net assets (deficit) (865,442) 130,739 1,048,329 
Total liabilities and net assets $ 5,919,863 $ 5,173,630 $ 5,056,286 


 
1 Certain 2009 and 2008 amounts were restated as discussed in Note 2. 
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Financial Analysis (continued) 


The Commission’s total net assets were $(865.4) million, $130.7 million, and $1,048.3 million as 
of May 31, 2010, 2009, and 2008, respectively. The large decreases in net assets in the fiscal 
years 2010 and 2009 were the result of $900 million and $850 million paid to the Pennsylvania 
Department of Transportation (PennDOT) as required by Act 44 and the Lease and Funding 
Agreement (Funding Agreement) between the Commission and PennDOT. These payments were 
recorded as nonoperating expenses. Please refer to Note 8 (Commitments and Contingencies) of 
the financial statements and to the Events That Will Impact Financial Position section of this 
MD&A for additional information regarding Act 44 and the Funding Agreement between the 
Commission and PennDOT. Restricted net assets are restricted for projects defined in Trust 
Indentures and applicable bond issue official statements. 


Total assets increased by $746.2 million and $117.3 million in fiscal 2010 and fiscal 2009, 
respectively. The 2010 increase is mostly related to increases in capital assets and long-term 
investments of $324.5 million and $316.5 million, respectively. The capital asset increase is the 
result of completion of several total reconstruction and bridge projects. The long-term 
investment increase is related to new bond issues which include Series 2009 A Build America 
Bonds and Series B, C, D and E Subordinate Bonds. The 2009 increase is mostly related to an 
increase of $320.0 million in capital assets which was partially offset by a decrease in cash and 
investments of $216.2 million. The increase in capital assets was due mainly to the completion of 
phase 1 of the Uniontown to Brownsville section of the Mon-Fayette project which is included in 
infrastructure. 


Total liabilities increased by $1,742.4 million in fiscal 2010 and by $1,034.9 million in fiscal 
2009. The fiscal 2010 increase is due mainly to the issuance of new bonds. The new issuances 
include: Series 2009 A Build America Bonds, Series B, C, D and E Subordinate Bonds, Series B 
and C Senior Bonds and Series 2010 A-1 and A-2 Bond Anticipation Notes. 


The fiscal 2009 increase is due mainly to the issuance of new bonds. The new issuances include: 
Series 2008 B Subordinate, 2008 C, 2008 C Subordinate and 2009 A Subordinate. 
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Financial Analysis (continued) 


Comparative Statements of Revenues and Expenses 


 Year Ended May 31 
 2010 2009 2008 
  (Restated)1 
 (In Thousands) 
Operating:    


Operating revenues $ 710,101 $ 633,547 $ 620,205 
Cost of services (378,426) (393,364) (372,959)
Depreciation (260,316) (241,701) (214,334)


Operating income (loss) 71,359 (1,518) 32,912 
    
Nonoperating revenues (expenses):    


Investment earnings 22,921 27,672 50,488 
Other nonoperating revenues (expenses) 7,174 660 (135)
Act 44 payments to PennDOT (900,000) (850,000) (750,000)
Capital assets transferred to PennDOT (64,058) – – 
Interest and bond expense (263,749) (191,553) (146,250)


Nonoperating expenses, net (1,197,712) (1,013,221) (845,897)
Loss before capital contributions (1,126,353) (1,014,739) (812,985)
Capital contributions 130,172 97,149 101,166 
Decrease in net assets $ (996,181) $ (917,590) $ (711,819)


 
1 Certain 2009 and 2008 amounts were restated as discussed in Note 2. 


For fiscal years ended May 31, 2010, 2009, and 2008, operating and nonoperating revenues 
totaled $740.2 million, $661.9 million, and $670.7 million, respectively, while expenses totaled 
$1,866.5 million, $1,676.6 million, and $1,483.7 million, respectively. 


Total revenues for fiscal 2010 were $78.3 million or 11.8% higher than 2009. The increase in 
total revenues was the result of an increase in operating revenues caused by a 3% toll increase 
implemented in January 2010 and the full-year effects of a 25% toll increase implemented in 
January 2009. In addition, other nonoperating revenues increased by $6.5 million which was the 
result of an $8.5 million interest subsidy received from the Federal Government for the Build 
America Bonds. This increase was offset by a $4.8 million reduction in investments earnings. 
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Financial Analysis (continued) 


Total expenses for fiscal 2010 were $189.9 million higher than 2009 primarily due to increases 
in Act 44 payments, interest and bond expenses, and depreciation expense. The Commission paid 
an additional $50.0 million to PennDOT in fiscal 2010 as required by Act 44. In addition, 
interest and bond expenses increased by $72.2 million, which was mainly the result of fiscal 
2010 and 2009 bond issuances. An increase in depreciation expense of $18.6 million resulted 
from the completion of several total reconstruction and bridge projects. 


Total revenues for fiscal 2009 were $8.8 million or 1.3% lower than 2008. The decrease in total 
revenues was mostly the result of a decrease in investment earnings. Investment earnings were 
down $22.8 million resulting from a decline in market interest rates and lower investment 
balances throughout the year. 


Total expenses for fiscal 2009 were $192.9 million higher than 2008 primarily due to increases 
in Act 44 payments, interest and bond expenses, cost of services and depreciation expense. The 
Commission paid an additional $100.0 million to PennDOT in fiscal 2009 as required by Act 44. 
In addition, interest and bond expenses increased by $45.3 million, which was mainly the result 
of fiscal 2009 and 2008 bond issuances. The $20.4 million increase in cost of services is mostly 
attributable to an $8.4 million increase in annual Other Post-Employment Benefits (OPEB) costs 
and a $7.9 million increase in I-80 related expenses. An increase in depreciation expense of 
$27.4 million resulted from completion of phase 1 of the Uniontown to Brownsville 
(Mon/Fayette) and total reconstruction projects and a full year of depreciation expense for the 
new Enterprise Resource Planning (ERP) system also added to the overall increase in expenses. 


Capital Assets and Debt Administration 


Capital Assets 


The Commission’s investment in capital assets at May 31, 2010 amounted to $8.4 billion of 
gross asset value with accumulated depreciation of $4.0 billion, leaving a net book value of 
$4.4 billion. This investment represents 74.2% of the Commission’s total assets compared with 
78.6% in 2009. Capital assets consist of land, buildings, improvements, equipment, 
infrastructure, and assets under construction. Infrastructure assets are typically items that are 
immovable such as highways, bridges, and tunnels. The net book value of capital assets at 
May 31, 2009 was $4.1 billion. 
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Financial Analysis (continued) 


Assets under construction at the end of fiscal 2010 were $1.2 billion, which was $80.1 million 
more than fiscal 2009. 


In fiscal 2010, $478.7 million of constructed capital assets were completed which was 
$164.3 million less than the $643.0 million of constructed capital assets completed in fiscal 
2009. In addition to constructed capital assets, the Commission had capital asset additions 
totaling more than $62.6 million and $14.3 million in fiscal 2010 and 2009, respectively. 


The Commission added $447.2 million of capital improvements to the existing mainline system 
and $211.3 million to the Mon/Fayette Expressway and Southern Beltway roadway expansion 
(Act 61) projects during fiscal year 2010. 


Roadway reconstruction totaling 75 miles has been completed. An additional 14 miles of 
roadway reconstruction has been initiated, and another 72 miles of reconstruction is currently in 
design. The Commission also completed 42 miles of roadway resurfacing, helping to maintain a 
quality-riding surface with a system-wide median International Roughness Index (IRI) of 78. 


The Commission completely replaced 18 aging original bridges with new bridges, and 
rehabilitated another 18 bridges in fiscal 2010 and fiscal 2009. Construction of the new 
Allegheny River Bridge is substantially complete and was open to traffic on September 7, 2010. 
The old Allegheny River Bridge was demolished on July 13, 2010. 


Facility projects continue to focus on environmental and safety compliance, and on the 
maintenance and repair of existing buildings including HVAC, electrical and plumbing systems. 
Equipment purchases and regular maintenance of existing equipment is ongoing to ensure the 
Turnpike fleet of dump trucks, plows, and other equipment is of sufficient number and 
functioning properly so that maintenance staff will be adequately equipped to maintain the 
roadway. 


Phase 2 of the Uniontown to Brownsville project, a 7 mile section, will complete the 
Mon/Fayette Expressway from the West Virginia Line in Fayette County to PA 51 in 
Washington County, a distance of 54 miles. Phase 2 major construction projects have been bid 
and this segment is currently under construction. As of June 1, 2010, 63% of the construction 
work has been completed and the Pennsylvania Turnpike Commission anticipates completion for 
phase 2 in late 2011 or early 2012. 
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Financial Analysis (continued) 


The Mon/Fayette Expressway project, extending from PA Route 51 to Interstate Route 376 in 
Pittsburgh, is completed through preliminary design phase and is waiting for additional funding. 


The proposed Southern Beltway is planned to be constructed from the Mon/Fayette Expressway, 
near Finleyville, extending as part of a beltway south of Pittsburgh to Pennsylvania Route 60 at 
the Pittsburgh International Airport. It is presently planned for construction in three sections. 
I-79 to Mon/Fayette Expressway has completed the environmental phase and is inactive until 
additional resources are found. The section from US 22 to I-79 is in final design, and acquisition 
of right-of-way for 108 total take parcels is underway. The total take parcels for US 22 to I-79 
have been authorized and acquisition should begin in late 2010. Additional funding is needed to 
continue the US 22 to I-79 project to complete the design and for all of its construction. 


A federal Environmental Impact Statement Record of Decision was issued for the I-95 Turnpike 
interchange project in late 2004 and preliminary design for the project has been completed. Final 
design has been initiated for the proposed Stage 1 construction which would include the tolling 
modifications (such as a new mainline toll plaza near Milepost 352, open road tolling – 
westbound at the Delaware River Bridge and elimination of tolls at Delaware Valley 
Interchange) and the I-95 ramps which will bring the I-95 designation on the PA and NJ 
Turnpikes. There are also several early action overhead bridge replacements required prior to 
mainline construction. Two of the early action bridges were bid in July 2010 and will be paid for 
by 100% Turnpike funds. Additional funding is needed for the construction of the remainder of 
the project. A draft Financial Plan is being developed to utilize federal funds and PTC funds for 
the Stage 1 construction. 


The above paragraphs describe the changes in capital assets occurring during the fiscal years 
ended May 31, 2010 and 2009. Please refer to the capital assets section in the notes to the 
financial statements (Note 5) for more detailed capital asset schedules. 


Debt Administration 


In May 2010, the Commission issued $79,900,000 2010 Sub-Series A-2 Turnpike Bond 
Anticipation Notes and, in April 2010, $225,095,000 Sub-Series A-1 Bond Anticipation Notes. 
The A-2 Series Anticipation Notes were issued primarily to refund the 2008 C-4 Series Bond 
Anticipation Notes. The 2010 A-1 Series Anticipation Notes were issued primarily to make 
payments to PennDOT in accordance with Act 44 to fund certain grants to mass transit agencies 
and various road, highway, bridge and capital projects of PennDOT. Both Series have a final 
maturity of July 15, 2011. Additionally, the Series A-2 Anticipation Notes are federally taxable. 
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Financial Analysis (continued) 


In December 2009, the Commission issued $208,280,000 Turnpike Senior Revenue Refunding 
Bonds Series C of 2009. The bonds were issued at a variable rate and were used to refund Series 
Q of 1998 and partially refund Series A of 2002. 


In December 2009, the Commission also issued $375,010,000 Turnpike Senior Revenue 
Refunding Bonds Series B of 2009. The bonds were issued at a fixed rate and were used to 
refund Series U of 2001, Series B of 2002 and partially refund Series A of 2002. 


In October 2009, the Commission issued $324,745,000 Turnpike Subordinate Revenue Bonds 
Series D and $200,004,558.45 Turnpike Subordinate Revenue, Capital Appreciation Bonds 
(CABs) Series E of 2009. The Series D and E bonds are at a fixed rate. The Series E CABs 
interest will compound until the conversion date of December 1, 2017. The Series D and E bonds 
were issued primarily to make payments to PennDOT in accordance with Act 44. 


In October 2009, the Commission issued $21,550,000 Oil Franchise Tax Senior Revenue Bonds, 
Series A of 2009, consisting of Sub-Series A-1 of 2009 (Refunding) and Sub-Series A-2 of 2009; 
$127,170,000 Pennsylvania Turnpike Commission Oil Franchise Tax Senior Revenue Bonds, 
Series B of 2009 (Federally Taxable—Issuer Subsidy—Build America Bonds); $15,461,246 
Pennsylvania Turnpike Commission Oil Franchise Tax Senior Revenue Capital Appreciation 
Bonds, Series C of 2009; $31,560,000 Pennsylvania Turnpike Commission Oil Franchise Tax 
Subordinated Revenue Bonds, Series D of 2009, consisting of Sub-Series D-1 of 2009 
(Refunding) and Sub-Series D-2 of 2009; and $102,505,000 Pennsylvania Turnpike Commission 
Oil Franchise Tax Subordinated Revenue Bonds, Series E of 2009 (Federally Taxable—Issuer 
Subsidy—Build America Bonds). The Commission has designated the 2009 B and E bonds as 
“Build America Bonds” for purposes of the American Recovery and Reinvestment Act of 2009 
and has elected to receive a cash subsidy from the United States Treasury equal to 35% of the 
interest payable on the 2009 B and E bonds. All of the Oil Franchise 2009 bonds are at a fixed 
rate. The A and D bonds were issued primarily to refund the Oil Franchise Tax Series 1998 
A&B. The B, C, and E bonds were issued primarily to provide funds to finance the cost of 
constructing the Mon/Fayette Expressway and the Southern Beltway. 


In July 2009, the Commission issued $856,735,000 Turnpike Subordinate Revenue Bonds, 
Series B and $99,998,204.25 Capital Appreciation Bonds Series C of 2009. The B&C bonds 
were issued at a fixed rate. The B&C bonds were issued to make payments to PennDOT in 
accordance with Act 44 and to refund Series 2007 A&B Bond Anticipation Notes. 
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Financial Analysis (continued) 


In July 2009, the Commission issued $275,000,000 Turnpike Revenue Bonds Series A of 2009, 
(Federally Taxable—Issuer Subsidy—Build America Bonds). The Commission has designated 
the 2009 A bonds as “Build America Bonds” for purposes of the American Recovery and 
Reinvestment Act of 2009 and has elected to receive a cash subsidy from the United States 
Treasury equal to 35% of the interest payable on the 2009 A bonds. The 2009 Series A bonds 
were issued at a fixed rate and were issued primarily to finance the cost of the capital projects set 
forth in the Commission’s Ten Year Capital Plan. 


In January 2009, the Commission issued $308,035,000 Turnpike Subordinate Revenue Bonds 
Series A of 2009. The 2009 A Subordinate Bonds were issued primarily to make payments to 
PennDOT in accordance with Act 44. 


On December 18, 2008, the Commission entered into two forward starting swap agreements with 
two counterparties. Each swap agreement had a notional amount of $150,000,000 with an 
effective date of June 1, 2010 and a termination date of June 1, 2039. The Commission entered 
into these forward starting interest rate swaps to hedge its exposure to interest rate variations and 
interest rate costs with respect to the Series 2009 A and Series 2010 B Mainline Revenue Bonds. 
The Commission issued its Series 2009 A revenue bonds in June 2009 and issued its Series 2010 
B revenue bonds in September 2010. 


In October 2008, the Commission issued $411,110,000 Turnpike Subordinate Revenue Bonds, 
Series C of 2008. The bonds consist of Sub-Series C-1 Subordinate Revenue Bonds issued for 
$231,335,000, Sub-Series C-3 Subordinate Revenue Bond Anticipation Notes issued for 
$102,060,000 and Sub-Series C-4 Subordinate Revenue Bond Anticipation Notes (federally 
taxable) issued for $77,715,000. These bonds were issued to make payments to PennDOT in 
accordance with Act 44. 


On August 19, 2008, the Commission issued $50,000,000 Turnpike Multi-Modal Revenue 
Bonds, Series C of 2008 maturing June 1, 2038. These bonds bear interest at a variable rate and 
were issued primarily to finance the costs of various Mainline capital expenditures to fund the 
reconstruction of roadbed and roadway and the widening, replacing and redecking of certain 
bridges and/or the rehabilitation of certain interchanges. 


In July 2008, the Commission issued $233,905,000 Turnpike Subordinate Revenue Bonds, 
Series B of 2008. Subseries B-1 of 2008 bonds total $164,915,000 and Subseries B-2 of 2008 
bonds total $68,990,000 (federally taxable). These bonds were issued to make payment to 
PennDOT in accordance with Act 44. 
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Financial Analysis (continued) 


The above paragraphs describe debt and swap activity occurring during the fiscal years ended 
May 31, 2010 and 2009. Please refer to the bonds payable and commitments and contingencies 
sections in the notes to the financial statements (Notes 6 and 8) for more detailed schedules and 
descriptions of long-term debt and swap activity. 


Events That Will Impact Financial Position 


On July 18, 2007, Pennsylvania Governor Rendell signed Act 44 into law, creating a “public-
public partnership” between the Commission and PennDOT to provide funding for roads, 
bridges and transit throughout the Commonwealth. Under Act 44, a Lease and Funding 
Agreement (Funding Agreement) was entered into by the Commission and PennDOT. Many of 
the terms of Act 44 are incorporated in the Funding Agreement. The term of the Funding 
Agreement is fifty years. 


The Funding Agreement (i) requires the Commission to make scheduled annual payments to 
PennDOT, payable in equal quarterly installments to be used to provide funding for roads, 
bridges and transit, and (ii) grants the Commission the option to lease the portion of I-80 located 
in the Commonwealth from PennDOT, assuming approval by the Federal Highway 
Administration (FHWA) of the conversion of I-80 into a toll road (the “Conversion”). The 
Funding Agreement grants the unilateral option to the Commission to effectuate the Conversion 
at any time before the third anniversary of the Funding Agreement, which is October 14, 2010 
(the “Conversion Period”). Under the Funding Agreement, the Commission may extend the 
Conversion Period for up to three one-year periods. FHWA’s approval of the tolling of I-80 is 
required in order for the Conversion to occur. 


On April 6, 2010, the FHWA denied the Commission’s application to toll I-80. The Commission 
has not appealed the FHWA’s decision or pursued the tolling of I-80 further and, barring 
unforeseen circumstances, does not expect to do so. The Commission did not extend the 
Conversion Period during the notice period provided under the Funding Agreement. Thus, the 
Conversion Period will terminate on October 14, 2010 and, barring any unforeseen 
circumstances, the Commission does not intend to give notice of Conversion prior to the end of 
the Conversion Period. Provided that the Commission does not give notice of Conversion by 
October 14, 2010, all legal, financial and operational responsibility for I-80 will remain with 
PennDOT barring any new statutory authority. Act 44 provides that under certain circumstances, 
payments to PennDOT drop to $450 million annually for the remaining term of the Funding  
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Events That Will Impact Financial Position (continued) 


Agreement. It is the Commission’s position that the reduced payment of $450 million is effective 
beginning with the 2010-11 Fiscal Year. The Commission intends to pay this amount on a 
quarterly basis as provided in Act 44, and made the first such payment in the amount of 
$112.5 million on July 29, 2010. In addition, the Commission’s obligation under Act 44 to make 
annual surplus payments of the General Reserve Fund Surplus (as defined in Act 44) at the end 
of each Fiscal Year, which would have commenced upon Conversion, also terminates if the 
Conversion does not occur. 


On August 4, 2010, the Commission received a letter from PennDOT, executed by the Secretary 
of Transportation (also the Chairman of the Commission), in which PennDOT acknowledged 
receipt of the Commission’s first quarterly payment for Fiscal Year 2010-2011 on July 29, 2010 
in the amount of $112.5 million but stated that it was not aware of a basis for a reduction in the 
Commission’s quarterly payments until the beginning of Fiscal Year 2011-2012 (the “August 4th 
Letter”). The August 4th Letter requested that the Commission provide a written legal analysis of 
the basis for the Commission’s determination that the amount of its July 2010 payment is 
consistent with Act 44 and the Funding Agreement given that the two parties are apparently not 
in agreement on the required amount of such payment. 


The Commission received a second letter from PennDOT, executed by the Secretary of 
Transportation, dated August 16, 2010 (the “August 16th Letter”), stating that the payment 
received on July 29, 2010 was less than PennDOT believes is owed. The remaining amount 
owed for the first quarterly payment made in July 2010 was stated to be $118.125 million. 
PennDOT’s stated position would apply to the remainder of the Fiscal Year 2010-2011 quarterly 
payments. Further, the August 16th Letter stated that PennDOT was invoking the remedies and 
sanctions available under Act 44 and the Funding Agreement, and that it was PennDOT’s 
position that the August 4th Letter started the 45-day period under the Funding Agreement to 
cure the Commission’s alleged failure to make the July 2010 quarterly payment required under 
the Funding Agreement. Assuming the 45-day period commenced on August 4, 2010, the 45-day 
period expired on September 18, 2010; provided, however, that the conclusion of such period 
will be deferred if the Commission prevails in its position that invoking the informal dispute 
resolution procedures provided for under the Funding Agreement prior to September 18, 2010 
tolled the cure period (such 45-day period, as deferred, if applicable, the “Cure Period”). 
Because PennDOT has claimed that the Commission must pay the higher payment for Fiscal 
Year 2010-11, and the Commission disputes that claim, the Funding Agreement requires that the 
parties must enter an informal dispute resolution process before pursuing other remedies. 
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Events That Will Impact Financial Position (continued) 


If the Commission and PennDOT do not resolve the disagreement regarding the amount of the 
payments due in Fiscal Year 2010-2011 under Act 44 and the Funding Agreement during the 
Cure Period, the Funding Agreement provides that PennDOT may seek and receive, as its sole 
and exclusive remedy pursuant to the Funding Agreement, to have all actions of the Commission 
taken by a vote of the Commissioners passed by a unanimous vote of all Commissioners until 
such time as the payment, as agreed to by the Commission and PennDOT, is made. Under Act 
44, a unanimous vote is not required if it would prevent the Commission from complying with 
covenants with “current bondholders, debt holders or creditors.” The Funding Agreement does 
not refer to “current bondholders, debt holders or creditors,” but provides that a unanimous vote 
is not required if it would prevent the Commission from complying with covenants with 
“bondholders, debt holders or creditors having such status as of the Effective Date” which under 
the Funding Agreement is defined as October 14, 2007. 


On August 31, 2010, the Commission sent PennDOT a response letter in which it disputed the 
claims made in the August 16th Letter and invoked the informal dispute resolution process. The 
Commission has not yet determined whether it will provide the legal analysis requested by 
PennDOT in the August 4th Letter. 


It is anticipated that there will be further communications between the parties concerning these 
matters. The resolution of these matters and the timing of such resolution is uncertain. There can 
be no assurance that PennDOT will not seek remedies in addition to the requirement of 
unanimous voting by the Commissioners. Furthermore, legislation has been proposed and may 
be introduced to amend Act 44 to require that the Commission make payments in excess of 
$450,000,000 to PennDOT for one or more additional years. Consequently, the Commission may 
be required to make payments in amounts greater than $450,000,000 for one or more Fiscal 
Years, but the likelihood of such higher payments cannot be determined at this time. 


Further, Act 44 provides that if the Secretary of the Budget notifies the Commission of a failure 
to make a payment to PennDOT under the Act and Funding Agreement, all actions of the 
Commission taken by a vote of the Commissioners shall be passed by a unanimous vote of all 
Commissioners until such time as the payment is made. However, a unanimous vote shall not be 
required if it would prevent the Commission from complying with certain covenants, as 
described above. The Commission has been advised that the Office of the Budget of the 
Commonwealth may assert that the reduced annual payment obligation is not effective until 
Fiscal Year 2011-12 and that a higher amount, a maximum of $922,500,000, is payable in Fiscal 
Year 2010-11. 
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Events That Will Impact Financial Position (continued) 


The Commission is required by the terms of the Funding Agreement and Act 44 to fix and adjust 
tolls at levels that will generate revenues (together with other available moneys) sufficient to 
pay, among other things, amounts to PennDOT pursuant to the Funding Agreement when due 
and other obligations of the Commission, and the Commission has covenanted in the Subordinate 
Indenture to set tolls at a level sufficient to meet its coverage obligations taking into account any 
additional debt incurred in order to make such payments. 


The Commission continued to meet its funding commitments in full and on time during fiscal 
2010, the third year of Act 44. As the Commission carries out its new Act 44 responsibilities, it 
also continues its efforts to maintain and improve the Turnpike. Meeting Act 44 and Turnpike 
funding commitments in a constrained financial environment requires carefully managing 
financial obligations while maintaining financial flexibility. 


The Commission plans to debt finance its quarterly payments to PennDOT as required under 
Act 44 for the foreseeable future. As a part of its financing plan, the Commission will continue to 
increase its toll rates on an annual basis to fund debt service payments associated with its Act 44 
payment obligations and Capital Improvement Program. 


The above paragraphs provide a brief overview of Act 44 and its requirements. Please refer to 
the commitments and contingencies section in the notes to the financial statements (Note 8) for 
additional information regarding the Commission’s commitments under the Funding Agreement. 







  
16 1006-1164688 
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A Component Unit of the Commonwealth of Pennsylvania 


Balance Sheets 
(In Thousands) 


 May 31 
 2010 2009
 (Restated)
Assets  
Current assets:  


Cash and cash equivalents $ 105,934 $ 118,623
Short-term investments – 2,031
Accounts receivable 27 595
Accrued interest receivable 178 152
Inventories 22,302 19,144
Restricted current assets:  


Cash and cash equivalents 509,496 473,512
Short-term investments 154,351 92,117
Accounts receivable 38,061 36,471
Accrued interest receivable 4,198 3,045


Total current assets 834,547 745,690
  
Noncurrent assets:  


Long-term investments:  
Long-term investments unrestricted 27,148 14,546
Long-term investments restricted 600,619 296,673


Total long-term investments 627,767 311,219
  


Capital assets not being depreciated:  
Land 234,543 204,665
Assets under construction 1,200,456 1,120,359


Capital assets being depreciated:  
Buildings 765,723 742,815
Improvements other than buildings 87,312 70,886
Equipment 472,246 454,609
Infrastructure 5,653,976 5,245,845
 8,414,256 7,839,179
Less accumulated depreciation 4,023,581 3,772,970


 4,390,675 4,066,209
Other assets:  


Other assets 1,840 2,332
Deferred issuance costs 65,034 48,180


Total other assets 66,874 50,512
Total noncurrent assets 5,085,316 4,427,940
Total assets $ 5,919,863 $ 5,173,630
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 May 31 
 2010 2009
 (Restated)
Liabilities and net assets  
Current liabilities:  


Accounts payable and accrued liabilities $ 300,563 $ 217,668
Current portion of debt 155,555 709,715
Unearned income 31,885 28,555


Total current liabilities 488,003 955,938
  
Noncurrent liabilities:  


Debt, less current portion, net of unamortized premium of $85,206 
and $50,337 in 2010 and 2009, respectively, and net of 
unamortized refunding loss of $114,703 and $65,855 in 2010 
and 2009, respectively 6,244,919 4,047,102 


Other noncurrent liabilities 52,383 39,851
Total noncurrent liabilities 6,297,302 4,086,953
Total liabilities 6,785,305 5,042,891
  
Net assets (deficit):  


Invested in capital assets, net of related debt 1,028,238 1,186,269
Restricted for construction purposes 332,110 306,402
Unrestricted (deficit) (2,225,790) (1,361,932)


Total net assets (deficit) (865,442) 130,739
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
Total liabilities and net assets $ 5,919,863 $ 5,173,630


See accompanying notes. 







  
1006-1164688 18


Pennsylvania Turnpike Commission  
A Component Unit of the Commonwealth of Pennsylvania 


Statements of Revenues, Expenses, and Changes in Net Assets 
(In Thousands) 


 Year Ended May 31 
 2010 2009 
  (Restated) 
Operating revenues:   


Fares – net of discounts of $24,211 and $22,640 for the years 
ended May 31, 2010 and 2009, respectively $ 693,827 $ 615,604 


Other 16,274 17,943 
 710,101 633,547 
Operating expenses:   


Cost of services 378,426 393,364 
Depreciation 260,316 241,701 


 638,742 635,065 
Operating income (loss) 71,359 (1,518)
   
Nonoperating revenues (expenses):   


Investment earnings 22,921 27,672 
Other nonoperating (expenses) revenues 7,174 660 
Act 44 payments to PennDOT (900,000) (850,000)
Capital assets transferred to PennDOT (64,058) – 
Interest and bond expenses (263,749) (191,553)


Nonoperating expenses, net (1,197,712) (1,013,221)
Loss before capital contributions (1,126,353) (1,014,739)
Capital contributions 130,172 97,149 
Decrease in net assets (996,181) (917,590)
   
Net assets at beginning of year 130,739 1,048,329 
Net assets (deficit) at end of year $ (865,442) $ 130,739 


See accompanying notes. 
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Pennsylvania Turnpike Commission  
A Component Unit of the Commonwealth of Pennsylvania 


Statements of Cash Flows 
(In Thousands) 


 Year Ended May 31
 2010 2009
 (Restated)
Operating activities  
Cash received from customer tolls and deposits $ 699,626 $ 629,760
Cash payments for goods and services (242,426) (252,946)
Cash payments to employees (132,030) (135,476)
Cash received from other operating activities 8,363 12,939
Net cash provided by operating activities 333,533 254,277
  
Investing activities  
Proceeds from sales and maturities of investments 1,350,132 780,732
Interest received on investments 18,337 26,343
Purchases of investments (1,723,476) (665,189)
Net cash (used in) provided by investing activities (355,007) 141,886
  
Capital and related financing activities  
Capital grants received 10,685 12,584
Cash proceeds from motor license grant 28,000 28,000
Cash proceeds from oil company franchise tax 59,733 57,379
Construction and acquisition of capital assets (629,851) (528,560)
Proceeds from sale of capital assets 1,140 1,225
Payments for bond expenses (12,454) (1,032)
Payments for redemption of debt (662,230) (67,555)
Interest paid on debt (119,458) (107,800)
Interest subsidy – Build America Bonds 8,457 –
Swap suspension payments received 20,708 –
Proceeds from debt issuances 1,191,396 64,921
Net cash used in capital and related financing activities (103,874) (540,838)
  
Noncapital financing activities  
Cash payments to PennDOT (900,000) (850,000)
Payments for bond expenses (1,154) (1,250)
Payments for redemption of debt (636,470) –
Interest paid on debt (84,422) (45,643)
Proceeds from debt issuances 1,770,689 938,129
Net cash provided by noncapital financing activities 148,643 41,236
Increase (decrease) in cash and cash equivalents 23,295 (103,439)
  
Cash and cash equivalents at beginning of year 592,135 695,574
Cash and cash equivalents at end of year $ 615,430 $ 592,135


Continued on the following page – see accompanying schedule of reconciliation. 
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(In Thousands) 
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 Year Ended May 31
 2010 2009
 (Restated)
 (In Thousands)
Reconciliation of operating income (loss) to net cash provided by 


operating activities   
Operating income (loss) $ 71,359 $ (1,518)
Adjustments to reconcile operating income (loss) to net cash 


provided by operating activities:   
Depreciation 260,316 241,701
Change in operating assets and liabilities:  


Accounts receivable (3,257) (641)
Inventories (3,158) (3,772)
Other assets 492 (939)
Accounts payable and accrued liabilities 3,809 17,475
Other noncurrent liabilities 3,972 1,971


Net cash provided by operating activities $ 333,533 $ 254,277
 
Noncash Activities 


The Commission recorded an increase of $3.7 million and $3.4 million in the fair value of its 
investments for the years ended May 31, 2010 and 2009, respectively. 


The Commission recognized $4.4 million in income for bond premium amortization for each of the 
years ended May 31, 2010 and 2009. 


The Commission recorded $10.7 million and $8.8 million in expenses for amortization of deferred 
refunding losses, amortization of bond issuance costs and amortization of swap agreement costs for 
the years ended May 31, 2010 and 2009, respectively. 


The Commission has entered into contracts with the operators of service plaza restaurants and service 
stations to totally reconstruct several service plazas. The service plaza operators provide the capital 
for the reconstruction in exchange for lower rental rates. The Commission assumes ownership of the 
reconstructed assets upon completion and records the assets as capital contributions. For the year 
ended May 31, 2010, the Commission received assets with a total fair value of $34.0 million. 


The Commission and PennDOT entered into an agreement regarding ownership of overhead bridges 
that carry state roads. Per the agreement, once the Commission replaces these overhead bridges, and 
after final inspections and supplemental agreements are signed by both parties, ownership and 
maintenance responsibilities of the bridges are transferred from the Commission to PennDOT. The 
Commission transferred assets with a net book value of $64.1 million to PennDOT during the fiscal 
year ended May 31, 2010. 


See accompanying notes. 
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Pennsylvania Turnpike Commission  
A Component Unit of the Commonwealth of Pennsylvania 


Notes to Financial Statements 


May 31, 2010 


1. Financial Reporting Entity 


The Pennsylvania Turnpike Commission (the Commission) was created as an instrumentality of 
the Commonwealth of Pennsylvania on May 21, 1937, with powers to construct, operate, and 
maintain the Turnpike System and to issue Turnpike revenue bonds, repayable solely from tolls 
and other Commission revenues. The Commission is considered a component unit of the 
Commonwealth of Pennsylvania (Commonwealth). 


In evaluating how to define the Commission for financial reporting purposes, management has 
considered all potential component units in accordance with Governmental Accounting 
Standards Board (GASB) Statements No. 14, The Reporting Entity, and No. 39, Determining 
Whether Certain Organizations Are Component Units—an amendment of GASB Statement 
No. 14. GASB Statement No. 14 defines the reporting entity as the primary government and 
those component units for which the primary government is financially accountable. GASB 
Statement No. 39 provides additional guidance to determine whether certain organizations for 
which the primary government is not financially accountable should be reported as component 
units based on the nature and significance of their relationship with the primary government. The 
Commission believes it has no component units based on its review of GASB Statements No. 14 
and No. 39. 


The Commission consists of five members, one of whom is the Secretary of Transportation. The 
others are appointed by the Governor with the approval of a majority of the Senate. 


2. Summary of Significant Accounting Policies 


The financial statements of the Pennsylvania Turnpike Commission have been prepared in 
conformity with accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America 
(GAAP) as applied to government units. GASB is the accepted standard-setting body for 
establishing governmental accounting and financial reporting principles. The more significant of 
the Commission’s accounting policies are described below: 


Application of FASB Pronouncements 


The Commission has elected not to apply any FASB statements or interpretations issued after 
November 30, 1989. 
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2. Summary of Significant Accounting Policies (continued) 


Basis of Accounting 


The Commission’s basic financial statements are presented on the accrual basis of accounting. 


Cash Equivalents 


For purposes of the statements of cash flows, the Commission considers all highly liquid debt 
investment securities that mature within three months of acquisition to be cash equivalents. 


Investments 


Investments are stated at fair value with the exception of certain nonparticipating contracts such 
as repurchase agreements and other agreements structured as repurchase agreements that are 
reported at cost, which does not materially differ from fair value. Fair values are based on quoted 
market prices. 


Capital Assets 


Capital assets are stated at cost. Donated capital assets are valued at their estimated fair value on 
the date received. Interest is capitalized based on average construction costs and the average 
bond interest rate, less interest earned on invested construction funds. Acquisitions of capital 
assets valued at $15,000 or greater are capitalized. Depreciation is computed using the straight-
line method over the estimated useful lives of the assets. The following lives are used: 


Buildings 10 – 45 years
Improvements other than buildings 15 – 20 years
Equipment 3 – 40 years
Infrastructure 10 – 50 years


 
Inventories 


Inventories are valued at the lower of average cost (determined on a first-in, first-out method) or 
market. 
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2. Summary of Significant Accounting Policies (continued) 


Debt Premium/Discount and Issuance Costs 


Debt premium/discount and issuance costs are being amortized using the effective interest rate 
method over the varying terms of the bonds issued. 


Unearned Income 


E-ZPass customers of the Turnpike Commission are required to deposit funds in advance of 
anticipated travel. Since this money is collected prior to the customers’ travel and revenue 
recognition, it is recorded as unearned income. Unearned income related to E-ZPass customers 
was $31.7 million and $28.4 million for the years ended May 31, 2010 and 2009, respectively. 
Unearned income also includes deferred revenues related to microwave tower leases. 


Operating Revenues 


Revenues associated with operations of the toll road are considered operating revenues. The 
principal operating revenues of the Commission are fare revenues from customers. Other 
operating revenues include: service station, restaurant, property and other rental income as well 
as electronic toll collection and violation enforcement fees related to the E-ZPass program. Also 
included is revenue from various sponsorship agreements. 


Fare Revenues 


Fare revenues are recognized when vehicles exit the Turnpike System. As of May 31, 2010 and 
2009, approximately 62.6% and 61.0%, respectively, of the fare revenues were realized through 
electronic toll collection; the remainder was realized through cash collection or a credit card 
program for military and class 9 vehicles. 


Operating Expenses 


Operating expenses relate directly to operating and maintaining the toll road. The principal 
operating expenses of the Commission are cost of services and depreciation. Other expenses are 
considered nonoperating expenses. 
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2. Summary of Significant Accounting Policies (continued) 


Cost of Services 


Cost of services includes: wages and salaries, benefits, utilities, fuels, professional fees and 
services, PA State Police services, and purchased goods, including materials and supplies. 


Utilization of Resources 


When both restricted and unrestricted resources are available for use, it is the Commission’s 
policy to use restricted resources first and then unrestricted resources as needed. 


Nonoperating Revenues (Expenses) 


Nonoperating revenues include: investment earnings and other miscellaneous revenues not 
associated with the operations of the toll road. Nonoperating expenses include: Act 44 payments 
to PennDOT, capital assets transferred to PennDOT, interest and bond expenses, and other 
miscellaneous expenses not associated with the operations of the toll road. 


Act 44 Payments to PennDOT 


The Commission and PennDOT entered into a Lease and Funding Agreement as required under 
the terms of Act 44. See Note 8 for more information regarding this Lease and Funding 
Agreement. 


Capital Assets Transferred to PennDOT 


The Commission and PennDOT entered into an agreement regarding ownership of overhead 
bridges that carry state roads. Per the agreement, once the Commission replaces these overhead 
bridges, and after final inspections and supplemental agreements are signed by both parties, 
ownership and maintenance responsibilities of the bridges are transferred from the Commission 
to PennDOT. The Commission transferred assets with a net book value of $64.1 million to 
PennDOT during the fiscal year ended May 31, 2010. 
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2. Summary of Significant Accounting Policies (continued) 


Capital Contributions 


Capital contributions include: Oil Company Franchise Tax revenues, Motor License Registration 
Fee revenues, grants from other governments restricted for reimbursement of capital costs for 
various highway construction projects and capital assets received from other third parties. 


Oil Company Franchise Tax Revenues 


The Commission receives 14% of the additional 55 mills of the Commonwealth’s Oil Company 
Franchise Tax revenues pursuant to Act 26 established in 1991. The revenues totaled 
$59.7 million and $57.4 million for the fiscal years ended May 31, 2010 and 2009, respectively. 
These revenues are kept in a separate fund as required by the applicable bond indenture. This 
fund’s assets equaled $406.5 million and $277.3 million as of May 31, 2010 and 2009, 
respectively, and consisted essentially of cash, investments, and assets under construction. These 
funds are restricted for capital expenditures. 


Motor License Registration Fee Revenues 


The Commission received $28.0 million in grants during each of the fiscal years ended May 31, 
2010 and 2009 from the Commonwealth’s Motor License Fund. The Commission has elected to 
account for this grant in a separate fund. This fund’s assets totaled $49.6 million and 
$87.1 million as of May 31, 2010 and 2009, respectively, and consisted essentially of cash, 
investments, and assets under construction. These funds are restricted for capital expenditures. 


Reimbursements from Other Governments 


The Commission receives grants from other governments for reimbursement of costs for various 
highway construction projects. During the fiscal years ended May 31, 2010 and 2009, the 
Commission received $8.5 million and $11.8 million, respectively, in reimbursements from the 
Federal government. 
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2. Summary of Significant Accounting Policies (continued) 


Other Capital Contributions 


The Commission has entered into contracts with the operators of service plaza restaurants and 
service stations to totally reconstruct several service plazas. The service plaza operators provide 
the capital for the reconstruction in exchange for lower rental rates. The Commission assumes 
ownership of the reconstructed assets upon completion and records the assets as capital 
contributions. For the fiscal year ended May 31, 2010, the Commission received assets with a 
total fair value of $34.0 million. 


Derivatives 


The Commission enters into various interest rate swaps in order to manage risks associated with 
interest on its bond portfolio. As currently allowed under accounting principles generally 
accepted in the United States, the Commission does not record the fair value or changes in the 
fair value of interest rate swaps in its financial statements. See Note 8 for relevant disclosures. 


Restatement Due to Correction of Errors 


During fiscal year 2010, the Commission determined that certain assets in service were 
improperly classified as assets under construction in prior year financial statements. This error 
resulted in an understatement of depreciation expense and a corresponding overstatement of 
capital assets (net of accumulated depreciation), total assets and total net assets. The 
accompanying 2009 financial statements have been restated to correct these errors. The 
cumulative effect of the depreciation errors at June 1, 2008, the beginning of the earliest 
financial statement period presented, reduced net assets by $20.6 million. Depreciation expense 
for the fiscal year ended May 31, 2009 was increased by $4.6 million to $241.7 million, and 
accumulated depreciation at May 31, 2009 was increased by $25.2 million to $3,773.0 million. 


The Commission in fiscal year 2010 determined that certain receipts from the Commonwealth 
related to oil company franchise taxes and motor license registration fees previously classified as 
nonoperating revenues should have been classified as capital contributions. These receipts are 
capital contributions under generally accepted accounting principles because the amounts 
received are legally restricted to capital projects of the Commission. The accompanying 2009 
financial statements have been restated to correct these classification errors, which resulted in an 
increase in reported capital contributions of $85.4 million and a corresponding reduction in  
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2. Summary of Significant Accounting Policies (continued) 


nonoperating revenues of $85.4 million. This reclassification, including the effects of correcting 
prior year classification errors, increased the reported amounts of restricted net assets by 
$200.0 million and $222.7 million at June 1, 2008 and May 31, 2009, respectively. Unrestricted 
net assets at June 1, 2008 and May 31, 2009 were reduced by equal amounts. In addition, the 
2009 statement of cash flows has been restated to reclassify the 2009 cash receipts related to 
these capital contributions of $85.4 million as cash provided from capital and related financing 
activities rather than noncapital financing activities. 


The Commission in fiscal year 2010 also determined, based on the Governmental Accounting 
Standards Board’s 2010 Question and Answer Guide, that payables related to capital project costs 
previously classified as restricted and unrestricted net assets should have been classified as net 
assets invested in capital assets, net of related debt, while deferred bond issuance costs previously 
reported as net assets invested in capital assets, net of related debt should have been classified as 
restricted or unrestricted net assets. The accompanying 2009 financial statements have been 
restated to correct these classification errors. These reclassifications, including the effects of 
correcting classification errors prior to 2009, decreased reported amounts of net assets invested in 
capital assets, net of related debt by $19.0 million and $52.4 million at June 1, 2008 and May 31, 
2009, respectively. Restricted net assets were increased by $21.1 million and $33.8 million at 
June 1, 2008 and May 31, 2009, respectively. Unrestricted net assets were decreased by 
$2.1 million and increased by $18.6 million at June 1, 2008 and May 31, 2009, respectively. 


Adoption of New Accounting Pronouncements 


In June 2007, GASB issued Statement No. 51, Accounting and Financial Reporting for 
Intangible Assets. This statement is effective for periods beginning after June 15, 2009. The 
Commission did not early adopt Statement No. 51. The objective of this Statement is to establish 
accounting and financial reporting requirements for intangible assets and to enhance the 
comparability of the accounting and financial reporting of such assets among state and local 
governments by reducing inconsistencies. 


In June 2008, GASB issued Statement No. 53, Accounting and Financial Reporting for 
Derivative Instruments. This statement is effective for periods beginning after June 15, 2009. 
The Commission did not early adopt Statement No. 53. Under this statement, the fair value of 
swaps will be recorded and an evaluation will be made as to the effectiveness of the swaps as 
hedge transactions. Ineffective hedge transactions will be recognized currently in the Statements 
of Revenues, Expenses and Changes in Net Assets while recognition of effective hedges will be 
deferred. 







Pennsylvania Turnpike Commission  
A Component Unit of the Commonwealth of Pennsylvania 


Notes to Financial Statements (continued) 


 


  
1006-1164688 28


3. Indenture Requirements and Restrictions 


The Commission’s debt has been issued under the provisions of a Trust Indenture, dated July 1, 
1986, which was amended and restated as of March 1, 2001; a Trust Indenture dated August 1, 
1998 (1998 Indenture); and a Trust Indenture dated July 1, 2005 (collectively referred to as the 
Indentures) between the Commission and the Trustee (U.S. Bank Corp., successor to Wachovia 
Bank); and a Subordinate Trust Indenture dated April 1, 2008, between the Commission and TD 
Bank, N.A. as Trustee, as amended and supplemented July 1, 2009 and April 1, 2010. 
Accordingly, certain activities of the Commission are restricted by the Indentures. 


The Commission is required to maintain certain accounts with the Trustees as specified by the 
Indentures. Funds maintained in such accounts are restricted to use for construction, Turnpike 
System maintenance and operation, Act 44 payments and debt service. 


4. Cash and Investments 


Cash deposits are in various financial institutions. The Indentures require that cash deposits be 
either insured or collateralized by a pledge of direct obligations of the United States Government 
or the Commonwealth of Pennsylvania or otherwise in accordance with the laws of the 
Commonwealth of Pennsylvania governing trust funds of public bodies. 


The following summary presents the amount of Commission deposits all of which are fully 
insured or collateralized with securities held by the Commission or its agent in the Commission’s 
name. 


 Total Bank 
Balance 


Total Book 
Balance 


 (In Thousands) 
May 31, 2010   
Demand deposits $ 610,538 $ 615,430 
   
May 31, 2009   
Demand deposits $ 588,223 $ 592,135 


 
  







Pennsylvania Turnpike Commission  
A Component Unit of the Commonwealth of Pennsylvania 


Notes to Financial Statements (continued) 


 


  
1006-1164688 29


4. Cash and Investments (continued) 


The Indentures permit investments in obligations of, or guaranteed by, the United States of 
America, its agencies, and its instrumentalities (United States Government obligations); 
certificates of deposit issued by institutions insured by the FDIC or fully collateralized with 
United States Government obligations; investment agreements with certain financial institutions; 
commercial paper and asset-backed securities rated in the highest category by applicable rating 
agencies; money market funds and auction rate certificates rated in one of the two highest 
categories by applicable rating agencies; corporate bonds and medium term notes with a 
minimum rating of AA-; investments in long-term debt obligations of any state or political 
subdivision but only to the extent that the applicable rating agency has assigned a rating to such 
obligations, which at the time of purchase is not lower than the highest underlying rating 
assigned to any series of Commission bonds then outstanding; and repurchase agreements with 
banks or primary government dealers reporting to the Federal Reserve Bank of New York 
collateralized with obligations of, or guaranteed by, the United States of America. 


Debt insurers have placed additional restrictions on construction funds. For these funds, 
corporate bonds, auction rate certificates, asset-backed securities, and medium term notes are not 
allowed. 


The Commission has an investment policy that defines guidelines and operational factors 
governing the investment of financial assets. The policy generally has the same restrictions 
regarding permitted investments as the Indentures. Permitted investments include: 


• U.S. Treasury Bills, Notes, Bonds, Strips; 


• Time Deposits issued by a banking association organized and doing business under the 
laws of the United States of America or of any state that may have a combined capital 
and surplus of at least $50,000,000; 


• Certificates of Deposit that are fully collateralized and issued by a bank, savings and loan 
or trust company organized under the laws of the United States or any state thereof; 


• Investment Agreements with a bank, a bank holding company or a financial institution 
that has outstanding long-term indebtedness rated “AA” or better by Moody’s and S&P; 


• Obligations of any federal agencies which obligations are backed by the full faith and 
credit of the United States of America; 
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4. Cash and Investments (continued) 


• Senior debt obligations rated “AAA” by S&P and “Aaa” by Moody’s and issued by 
government-sponsored enterprises which include Federal Home Loan Bank, Federal 
Farm Credit Bank, Federal Home Loan Mortgage Corporation; and Federal National 
Mortgage Association; 


• Mortgage-backed securities issued by an approved Federal agency and collateralized 
mortgage obligations with ratings of Aaa by Moody’s and AAA by S&P’s; 


• Debt obligations of any state or local government entity with securities rated in the 
Aa/AA category; 


• Commercial paper rated not less than “A-1/P-1/F-1”, corporate bonds rated “Aa3/AA-” 
or better, and asset-backed securities rated “AAA”; 


• Repurchase agreements with banks or primary government dealers reporting to the 
Federal Reserve Bank of New York, collateralized by investments with a minimum 102% 
valuation in securities of U.S. Treasury bills, notes, bonds, strips, or obligations of any of 
federal agencies or senior debt obligations described above; and 


• Share or Certificates in any short-term investment fund investing not less than 90% of its 
assets in obligations of U.S. treasury bills, notes, bonds, strips or time deposits. 


All investment ratings shall be based on security ratings at the time of purchase. The portfolio’s 
average credit quality should be rated Aa3/AA- or better by Moody’s/S&P. Investments are 
generally purchased with the intent of holding to maturity with flexibility to restructure and 
rebalance portfolio holdings to manage risk and benefit from market opportunities. 


The investment policy imposes the following additional limitations: 


• Investments in any single Federal agency are limited to 35% of the portfolio. 


• Investments in certificates of deposit and investment agreements are limited to 30% of 
the portfolio. 
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4. Cash and Investments (continued) 


• Combined exposure to commercial paper, corporate bonds, and asset-backed securities, 
in aggregate, is limited to 35% of the total portfolio. 


• Investments in any single issuer, excluding U.S. Treasury and Federal Agencies, are 
limited to 5% of the portfolio. 


The Commission’s investment policy also limits investments to those issues expected to mature 
within five years, taking into consideration call, prepayment, or other features that may impact 
maturity. 


Credit Risk 


The Commission’s exposure to credit risk as of May 31, 2010 is as follows: 


Debt Investments 
Quality Rating  


AAA AA A A-1 *Unrated 
 (In Thousands) 
      
Government agency securities $ 376,735 $ 1,957 $ – $ – $ 22,332 
Corporate obligations 54,507 87,315 – – 5,894 
Municipal bonds 36,451 170,997 – – – 
 
*Unrated debt investments are securities that are not rated by the NRSROs. 


Investments guaranteed by the full faith of the U.S. Government, such as U.S. Treasuries and 
GNMA mortgages, are not considered to have credit risk and do not require disclosure of credit 
quality. 
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4. Cash and Investments (continued) 


Concentration of Credit Risk 


As of May 31, 2010, the Commission had investments of more than 5% of its consolidated 
portfolio with the following issuers: 


Issuer 
Total 


Investments 
Percent 
of Total 


 (In Thousands)  
   
Federal Home Loan Bank $ 133,296 9.54% 
Federal National Mortgage Association 170,941 12.23 


 
Interest Rate Risk 


On May 31, 2010, the effective duration of the Commission’s investments, by type, was as 
follows: 


Investment Type Fair Value 


Effective 
Duration 
(Years) 


 (In Thousands)  
  
U.S. Treasuries $ 23,991 2.1726 
GNMA mortgages 1,939 1.6300 
Government agency securities 401,024 1.0101 
Municipal bonds 207,448 1.2712 
Corporate obligations 147,716 1.5043 
Total investment securities and cash equivalents $ 782,118  
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4. Cash and Investments (continued) 


The following is a summary of cash and cash equivalents and investments by type: 


 May 31 
 2010 2009 
 (In Thousands) 
   
U.S. Treasuries $ 23,991 $ 34,212 
GNMA mortgages 1,939 7,677 
Government agency securities 401,024 196,202 
Municipal bonds 207,448 19,861 
Corporate obligations 147,716 130,966 
Guaranteed investment contracts – 16,449 
Total investment securities and cash equivalents 782,118 405,367 
   
Demand deposits 615,430 592,135 
Total cash and cash equivalents and investments $ 1,397,548 $ 997,502 
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5. Capital Assets 


A summary of changes to capital assets for the years ended May 31, 2010 and 2009 (restated) is 
as follows: 


 
Balance  


June 1, 2009 Additions Transfers Retirements 
Balance  


May 31, 2010 
 (In Thousands) 
Capital assets not being 


depreciated (cost)      
Land $ 204,665 $ 30,224 $ – $ 346 $ 234,543 
Assets under construction 1,120,359 558,748 (478,651) – 1,200,456 
Total capital assets not being 


depreciated 1,325,024 588,972 (478,651) 346 1,434,999 
      
Capital assets being depreciated 


(cost)      
Buildings 742,815 27,498 354 4,944 765,723 
Improvements other than buildings 70,886 5,434 10,992 – 87,312 
Equipment 454,609 11,185 10,303 3,851 472,246 
Infrastructure 5,245,845 18,526 457,002 67,397 5,653,976 
Total capital assets being 


depreciated 6,514,155 62,643 478,651 76,192 6,979,257 
      
Less accumulated depreciation for:      


Buildings 250,243 20,509 – 2,802 267,950 
Improvements other than 


buildings 50,404 3,551 – – 53,955 
Equipment 313,800 23,359 – 3,564 333,595 
Infrastructure 3,158,523 212,897 – 3,339 3,368,081 


Total accumulated depreciation 3,772,970 260,316 – 9,705 4,023,581 
Total capital assets being 


depreciated, net 2,741,185 (197,673) 478,651 66,487 2,955,676 
Total capital assets $ 4,066,209 $ 391,299 $ – $ 66,833 $ 4,390,675 
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5. Capital Assets (continued) 


 
Balance  


June 1, 20081 Additions1 Transfers1 Retirements 
Balance  


May 31, 20091


 (In Thousands) 
Capital assets not being 


depreciated (cost)      
Land $ 181,846 $ 23,209 $ – $ 390 $ 204,665 
Assets under construction 1,237,242 526,137 (643,020) – 1,120,359 
Total capital assets not being 


depreciated 1,419,088 549,346 (643,020) 390 1,325,024 
      
Capital assets being depreciated 


(cost)      
Buildings 697,816 29 49,917 4,947 742,815 
Improvements other than buildings 70,046 751 89 – 70,886 
Equipment 450,142 5,664 14,006 15,203 454,609 
Infrastructure 4,658,932 7,905 579,008 – 5,245,845 
Total capital assets being 


depreciated 5,876,936 14,349 643,020 20,150 6,514,155 
      
Less accumulated depreciation for:      


Buildings 233,845 19,981 – 3,583 250,243 
Improvements other than 


buildings 47,835 2,569 – – 50,404 
Equipment 284,593 44,188 – 14,981 313,800 
Infrastructure 2,983,560 174,963 – – 3,158,523 


Total accumulated depreciation 3,549,833 241,701 – 18,564 3,772,970 
Total capital assets being 


depreciated, net 2,327,103 (227,352) 643,020 1,586 2,741,185 
Total capital assets $ 3,746,191 $ 321,994 $ – $ 1,976 $ 4,066,209 


 
1 Note that amounts for the fiscal year ended May 31, 2009 have been restated as discussed in Note 2. 


For the fiscal years ended May 31, 2010 and 2009, the Commission incurred interest costs of 
$16.9 million and $17.1 million, respectively, which qualified for capitalization. For 2010, the 
interest expense was offset by $0.3 million of interest income resulting in a net capitalization of 
$16.6 million. For 2009, the interest expense was offset by $9.2 million of interest income 
resulting in a net capitalization of $7.9 million. 


During fiscal year 2010, certain useful lives were extended to more closely approximate the 
actual useful lives resulting in a reduction in depreciation expense of $21.0 million. 
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6. Debt 


Debt consists of the following: 


 May 31 
 2010 2009 
 (In Thousands) 
Mainline Debt   
1998 Series Q: Issued $53,000 in July 1998 at a variable rate (based on 


SIFMA, reset daily, paid the 1st of each month); refunded. $ – $ 53,000 
2001 Series R: Issued $186,025 in March 2001 at 5.00% to 5.125%, due 


in varying installments through December 1, 2030. Interest paid each 
June 1 and December 1. 186,025 186,025 


2001 Series S: Issued $244,925 in May 2001 at 3.40% to 5.60%, due in 
varying installments through June 1, 2015. Interest paid each June 1 
and December 1. 126,015 143,530 


2001 Series T: Issued $86,660 in September 2001 at 4.13% to 5.50%, 
due in varying installments through December 1, 2013. Interest paid 
each June 1 and December 1. 64,415 72,755 


2001 Series U: Issued $169,820 in September 2001 at a variable rate 
(based on SIFMA, reset weekly, paid the 1st of each month); refunded. – 169,820 


2002 Series A: Issued $288,265 in September 2002 at a variable rate 
(based on SIFMA, reset weekly, paid the 1st of each month); refunded. – 288,265 


2002 Series B: Issued $160,880 in September 2002 at a variable rate 
(based on SIFMA, reset weekly, paid the 1st of each month); refunded. – 49,470 


2004 Series A: Issued $269,245 in June 2004 at 5.00% to 5.50%, due in 
varying installments through December 1, 2034. Interest paid each 
June 1 and December 1. 269,245 269,245 


2006 Series A: Issued $118,015 in June 2006 at 5.00%, due in varying 
installments through December 1, 2026. Interest paid each June 1 and 
December 1. 118,015 118,015 


2007 Series A: Issued $280,830 in October 2007 at 4.00%, due in 
varying installments through October 15, 2009. Interest paid each 
April 15 and October 15; refunded. – 280,830 


2007 Series B (Federally Taxable): Issued $251,025 in October 2007 at 
5.29% due in varying installments through October 15, 2009. Interest 
paid each April 15 and October 15; refunded. – 251,025 


2008 Series A Subordinate (Subseries A-1): Issued $176,565 in 
April 2008 at 4.125% to 5.00%, due in varying installments through 
June 1, 2038. Interest paid each June 1 and December 1. 176,565 176,565 
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6. Debt (continued) 


 May 31 
 2010 2009 
 (In Thousands) 
Mainline Debt (continued)   
2008 Series A Subordinate (Subseries A-2 Federally Taxable): Issued 


$68,290 in April 2008 at 3.74% to 6.41%, due in varying installments 
through June 1, 2022. Interest paid each June 1 and December 1. $ 65,735 $ 68,290 


2008 Series B Multi-Modal: Issued $402,000 in May 2008 at a variable 
rate (based on SIFMA, reset weekly, paid the 1st of each month) due 
in varying installments through December 1, 2038. 400,200 402,000 


2008 Series A Multi-Modal Refunding: Issued $233,455 in May 2008 at 
a variable rate (based on SIFMA, reset weekly, paid the 1st of each 
month) due in varying installments through December 1, 2022. 208,615 221,705 


2008 Series B Subordinate (Subseries B-2 Federally Taxable): Issued 
$233,905 in July 2008 at 5.00% to 7.47% due in varying installments 
through June 1, 2036. Interest paid each June 1 and December 1. 233,905 233,905 


2008 Series C Multi-Modal Revenue: Issued $50,000 in August 2008 at 
a variable rate (based on SIFMA, reset weekly, paid the 1st of each 
month) due in varying installments through June 1, 2038. 50,000 50,000 


2008 Series C Subordinate; C-1, C-2, C-4 (Subseries C-4 Federally 
Taxable): Issued $411,110 in October 2008 at 4.00% to 6.25% due in 
varying installments through June 1, 2038. Interest paid each June 1 
and December 1 (Subseries C-3 interest due on July 31, 2009); C-3 
refunded. 309,050 411,110 


2009 Series A Subordinate: Issued $308,035 in January 2009 at 3.00% 
to 5.00% due in varying installments through June 1, 2039. Interest 
paid each June 1 and December 1. 308,035 308,035 


2009 Series A Build America Bonds: Issued $275,000 in June 2009 at 
6.105% due in varying installments through December 1, 2039. 
Interest paid each June 1 and December 1. 275,000 – 


2009 Series B Subordinate: Issued $856,735 in July 2009 at 3.00% to 
5.75% due in varying installments through June 1, 2039. Interest paid 
each June 1 and December 1. 856,735 – 


2009 Series C Subordinate Capital Appreciation: Issued $99,998 in 
July 2009 at 6.25% due in varying installments through June 1, 2033. 
Interest to be compounded semi-annually from July 2009 until June 1, 
2016, thereafter paid each June and December 1. Series C issued as 
Capital Appreciation Bonds (CABs). Compounded interest to be paid 
at maturity or earlier redemption. 105,314 – 
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6. Debt (continued) 


 May 31 
 2010 2009 
 (In Thousands) 
Mainline Debt (continued)   
2009 Series D Subordinate: Issued $324,745 in October 2009 at 4% to 


5.5% due in varying installments through December 1, 2041. Interest 
paid each June 1 and December 1. $ 324,745 $ – 


2009 Series E Subordinate: Issued $200,005 in October 2009 at 6% to 
6.375% due in varying installments through December 1, 2038. 
Interest to be compounded semi-annually from October 2009 to 
December 1, 2017, thereafter paid each June and December 1. Series 
E issued as Capital Appreciation Bonds (CABs).The compounded 
interest to be paid at maturity or earlier redemption. 207,494 – 


2009 Series B Senior: Issued $375,010 in December 2009 at 3% to 5% 
due in varying installments through December 1, 2025. Interest paid 
each June 1 and December 1. 375,010 – 


2009 Series C Senior: Issued $208,280 in December 2009 at variable 
rate (based on SIFMA + .52% to 1.05%, paid the 1st of each month) 
due in varying installments through December 1, 2014. 208,280 – 


2010 Sub-Series A-1 Subordinate (BAN): Issued $225,095 in 
April 2010 at a variable rate (based on SIFMA + .75% to 9.5%) due 
July 15, 2011. 225,095 – 


2010 Sub-Series A-2 Subordinate (BAN): Issued $79,900 in May 2010 
at a variable rate (based on LIBOR + 125 basis points to 9.5%) due 
July 15, 2011. 79,900 – 


Total Mainline debt payable 5,173,393 3,753,590 
   
Oil Company Franchise Tax Debt   
1998 Series A Oil Company Franchise Tax Revenue: Issued $310,475 


in August 1998 at 3.85% to 5.50%, partially defeased in July 2003 
and November 2006. Interest paid each June 1 and December 1; 
refunded. – 18,505 


1998 Series B Oil Company Franchise Tax Revenue: Issued $228,405 in 
August 1998 at 3.85% to 5.25%, partially defeased in July 2003 and 
November 2006. Interest paid each June 1 and December 1; refunded. – 28,845 


2003 Series A Oil Company Franchise Tax Revenue: Issued $124,730 
in August 2003 at 2.50% to 5.25%, partially defeased in 
November 2006, due in varying installments through December 1, 
2024. Interest paid each June 1 and December 1. 49,300 53,405 
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6. Debt (continued) 


 May 31 
 2010 2009 
 (In Thousands) 
Oil Company Franchise Tax Debt (continued)   
2003 Series B Oil Company Franchise Tax Revenue: Issued $197,955 in 


August 2003 at 2.38% to 5.50%, partially defeased in 
November 2006, due in varying installments through December 1, 
2032. Interest paid each June 1 and December 1. $ 66,420 $ 69,910 


2003 Series C Oil Company Franchise Tax Multi-Modal Revenue: 
Issued $160,000 in August 2003 at a variable rate, were converted to a 
fixed rate of 5.00% in May 2008, due in varying installments through 
December 1, 2032. Interest paid each June 1 and December 1. 160,000 160,000 


2006 Series A Oil Company Franchise Tax Revenue Refunding: Issued 
$98,705 in November 2006 at 5.00%, due in varying installments 
through December 1, 2023. Interest paid each June 1 and December 1. 98,705 98,705 


2006 Series B Oil Company Franchise Tax Revenue Refunding: Issued 
$141,970 in November 2006 at 3.75% to 5.00%, due in varying 
installments through December 1, 2031. Interest paid each June 1 and 
December 1. 141,370 141,670 


2009 Series A, B, C Senior Oil Company Franchise Tax Revenue 
Bonds: Issued $164,181 in October 2009. Series A issued at 2.00% to 
5.85% due in varying installments through December 1, 2023. Series 
B (Build America Bonds, Issuer Subsidy) issued at 5.85% due in 
varying installments through December 1, 2037. Interest paid each 
June 1 and December 1. Series C issued as Capital Appreciation 
Bonds (CABs) at 5.30%. Interest on the CABs is deferred until 
maturity on December 1, 2039. 164,698 –


2009 Series D&E Subordinate Oil Company Franchise Tax Revenue 
Bonds: Issued $134,065 in October 2009. Series D issued at 2.00% 
to 5.00% due in varying installments through December 1, 2027. 
Series E (Issuer Subsidy, Build America Bonds) issued at 6.378% 
due in varying installments through December 1, 2037. 134,065 –


Total Oil Company Franchise Tax debt payable 814,558 571,040 
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6. Debt (continued) 


 May 31 
 2010 2009 
 (In Thousands) 
Motor License Registration Fee Debt   
2005 Series A: Issued $234,135 in August 2005 at 3.25% to 5.25%, due 


in varying installments through July 15, 2030. Interest paid each 
January 15 and July 15. $ 210,595 $ 216,280 


2005 Series B, C, and D: Issued $231,425 in August 2005 at a variable 
rate (based on SIFMA, reset weekly, paid the 15th of each month) due 
in varying installments through July 15, 2041. 231,425 231,425 


Total Motor License Registration Fee debt payable 442,020 447,705 
Total debt payable 6,429,971 4,772,335 
Unamortized premium 85,206 50,337 
Unamortized deferred loss on refundings (114,703) (65,855)
Total debt, net of unamortized premium and deferred loss on refundings 6,400,474 4,756,817 
Less current portion 155,555 709,715 
Debt, noncurrent portion $ 6,244,919 $ 4,047,102 


 
As disclosed in Note 3, the Commission’s Trust Indentures impose certain restrictions and 
requirements. The Commission’s Trust Indenture for the Series 2008 A Turnpike Subordinate 
Revenue Bonds imposes that the Commission establish and maintain schedules of tolls for traffic 
over the System as required by the Senior Indenture, and in addition, the amount paid into the 
General Reserve Fund of the Senior Indenture in each fiscal year and for each Commission 
Payment, will be at least sufficient to provide funds in an amount not less than: (1) 115% of the 
Annual Debt Service for each fiscal year on account of all outstanding Revenue Bonds and 
Revenue Bonds Parity Obligations; (2) 100% of the Annual Debt Service for such fiscal year on 
account of all Outstanding Guaranteed Bonds, Guaranteed Bonds Parity Obligations and 
Subordinated Indebtedness; and (3) any payment by the Commission required by the Subordinate 
Indenture for restoring a deficiency in the Debt Service Fund within an eighteen (18) month 
period. 


The Amended and Restated Trust Indenture of 2001 requires that tolls be adequate to provide 
funds to cover current expenses and (1) provide funds in an amount not less than the greater of 
130% of the maximum principal and interest requirements for the succeeding year, or (2) 100% 
of the maximum principal and interest payments for the next fiscal year plus the amount required 
for maintenance of the Turnpike System as determined by the Commission’s Consulting 
Engineer. If any deficiencies occur, the Commission is authorized to raise tolls accordingly. 
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6. Debt (continued) 


The Oil Company Franchise Tax Revenue Bonds are secured by a pledge and assignment by the 
Commission to the Trustee of: (1) all proceeds from the Commission’s allocation of the 
Commonwealth of Pennsylvania’s Oil Company Franchise Tax; (2) the Commission’s right to 
receive its allocation of the Oil Company Franchise Tax and any portion of the allocation 
actually received by the Commission; (3) all monies deposited into accounts or funds created by 
the 1998 Indenture, as supplemented; and, (4) all investment earnings on all monies held in 
accounts and funds established by the 1998 Indenture. 


The 1998 Indenture requires the Commission to petition the General Assembly of the 
Commonwealth of Pennsylvania for additional funds in the event that the Commission’s 
allocation of the Oil Company Franchise Tax is inadequate to pay maximum principal and 
interest payments for the succeeding year. 


Pursuant to Section 20 of Act 3, the Commonwealth appropriates $28,000,000 of Act 3 revenues 
to the Commission annually. The $28,000,000 is payable to the Commission in the amount of 
$2,333,333 per month. The Registration Fee Revenue Bonds are secured by a pledge and 
assignment by the Commission to the Trustee of any receipts, revenues and other moneys 
received by the Trustee on or after the date of the Indenture from the Commission’s allocation of 
Act 3 revenues and any income earned on any fund or account established pursuant to the 
Indenture. 


Changes in debt are as follows: 


 
Balance at 


June 1, 2009 Additions Reductions 
Balance at 


May 31, 2010 
Due Within 
One Year 


 (In Thousands) 
      
Mainline debt $ 3,753,590 $ 2,657,573 $ 1,237,770 $ 5,173,393 $ 135,070 
Oil Company Franchise Tax debt 571,040 298,763 55,245 814,558 14,605 
Motor License Registration Fee 


debt 447,705 – 5,685 442,020 5,880 
 4,772,335 2,956,336 1,298,700 6,429,971 155,555 
Premium (discount), net 50,337 38,732 3,863 85,206 – 
Unamortized deferred loss on 


refundings  (65,855) (69,721) (20,873) (114,703) – 
 $ 4,756,817 $ 2,925,347 $ 1,281,690 $ 6,400,474 $ 155,555 
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6. Debt (continued) 


 
Balance at 


June 1, 2008 Additions Reductions 
Balance at 


May 31, 2009 
Due Within 
One Year 


 (In Thousands) 
      
Mainline debt $ 2,800,035 $ 1,003,050 $ 49,495 $ 3,753,590 $ 690,955 
Oil Company Franchise Tax debt 583,600 – 12,560 571,040 13,075 
Motor License Registration Fee 


debt 453,205 – 5,500 447,705 5,685 
 3,836,840 1,003,050 67,555 4,772,335 709,715 
Premium (discount), net 56,906 (2,151) 4,418 50,337 – 
Unamortized deferred loss on 


refundings  (70,904) – (5,049) (65,855) – 
 $ 3,822,842 $ 1,000,899 $ 66,924 $ 4,756,817 $ 709,715 


 
The issuance of new debt is conducted in accordance with the terms of the applicable Trust 
Indenture and approval of the Commissioners. 


In July 2008, the Commission issued $233,905,000 Turnpike Subordinate Revenue Bonds, 
Series B of 2008. These bonds were issued primarily to finance the costs of making payments to 
fund certain grants to mass transit agencies and to fund various road, highway and bridge capital 
projects of PennDOT in accordance with Act 44. 


In August 2008, the Commission issued $50,000,000 Turnpike Multi-Modal Revenue Bonds, 
Series C of 2008 maturing June 1, 2038. These bonds bear interest at a variable rate and were 
issued primarily to finance the costs of various capital expenditures to fund the reconstruction of 
roadbed and roadway and the widening, replacing and redecking of certain bridges and/or the 
rehabilitation of certain interchanges. 


In October 2008, the Commission issued $411,110,000 Turnpike Subordinate Revenue Bonds, 
Series C of 2008. The bonds consist of Subseries C-1 Subordinate Revenue Bonds issued for 
$231,335,000, Subseries C-3 Subordinate Revenue Bond Anticipation Notes issued for 
$102,060,000 and Subseries C-4 Subordinate Revenue Bond Anticipation Notes (federally 
taxable) issued for $77,715,000. These bonds were issued primarily to make payments to 
PennDOT in accordance with Act 44 to fund certain grants to mass transit agencies and various 
road, highway, bridge and capital projects of PennDOT. 
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6. Debt (continued) 


In January 2009, the Commission issued $308,035,000 Turnpike Subordinate Revenue Bonds, 
Series A of 2009. The 2009 A Subordinate Bonds were issued primarily to make payments to 
PennDOT in accordance with Act 44 to fund certain grants to mass transit agencies and various 
road, highway, bridge and capital projects of PennDOT. 


In July 2009, the Commission issued $275,000,000 Turnpike Revenue Bonds Series A of 2009, 
Federally Taxable, Issue Subsidy, Build America Bonds. The 2009 Series A bonds were issued 
at a fixed rate and were issued primarily to finance the cost of the capital projects set forth in the 
Commission’s Ten Year Capital Plan. 


In July 2009, the Commission issued $856,735,000 Turnpike Subordinate Revenue Bonds, 
Series B and $99,998,204.25 Capital Appreciation Bonds Series C of 2009. The B&C bonds 
were issued at a fixed rate. The B&C bonds were issued to make payments to PennDOT in 
accordance with Act 44 and to provide funds to redeem the Series 2007 A&B Bond Anticipation 
Notes and the 2008 C-3 Bond Anticipation Notes. 


In October 2009, the Commission issued $21,550,000 Oil Franchise Tax Senior Revenue Bonds, 
Series A of 2009; $127,170,000 Pennsylvania Turnpike Commission Oil Franchise Tax Senior 
Revenue Bonds, Series B of 2009 (Federally Taxable—Issuer Subsidy—Build America Bonds); 
$15,461,246 Pennsylvania Turnpike Commission Oil Franchise Tax Senior Revenue Capital 
Appreciation Bonds, Series C of 2009 (Capital Appreciation Bonds); $31,560,000 Pennsylvania 
Turnpike Commission Oil Franchise Tax Subordinate Revenue Bonds, Series D of 2009; and 
$102,505,000 Pennsylvania Turnpike Commission Oil Franchise Tax Subordinate Revenue 
Bonds, Series E of 2009 (Federally Taxable—Issuer Subsidy—Build America Bonds). The 
Commission has designated the 2009 B and E bonds as “Build America Bonds” for purposes of 
the American Recovery and Reinvestment Act of 2009 and has elected to receive a cash subsidy 
from the United States Treasury equal to 35% of the interest payable on the 2009 B and E bonds. 


The 2009 A bonds were issued primarily to refund the Oil Franchise Tax Series 1998 A and to 
provide funds to finance a portion of the costs of constructing the Mon/Fayette Expressway and 
Southern Beltway. The 2009 B & C bonds were issued to finance a portion of the costs of 
constructing the Mon/Fayette Expressway and Southern Beltway. The D and E bonds were 
issued primarily to refund the Series B of 1998 and to provide funds to finance a portion of the 
cost of constructing the Mon/Fayette Expressway and Southern Beltway. The reacquisition price 
exceeded the net carrying amount of the 1998 A&B bonds by $1,268,140 and will be amortized 
over the life of the old bonds. These advance refundings resulted in a net present value savings of 
$1,700,000 for the 1998 A bonds and $1,100,000 for the 1998 B bonds. 
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6. Debt (continued) 


In October 2009, the Commission issued $324,745,000 Turnpike Subordinate Revenue Bonds 
Series D and $200,004,558.45 Turnpike Subordinate Revenue, Capital Appreciation Bonds 
(CABs) Series E of 2009. The D&E bonds were issued primarily to make payments to PennDOT 
in accordance with Act 44. 


In December 2009, the Commission issued $375,010,000 Turnpike Senior Revenue Refunding 
Bonds Series B of 2009. The bonds were issued to refund Series U of 2001, Series B of 2002 and 
partially refund Series A of 2002. In addition, the 2009 B bonds were issued to fund the 
termination fees of certain swaps related to the 2001 U, 2002 A and 2002 B bonds. The 
termination fees amounted to $25,250,000 for the 2001 U bonds, $24,887,900 for the 2002 A 
bonds and $2,528,000 for the 2002 B bonds. The reacquisition price exceeded the net carrying 
amount of the 2001 U bonds by $7,023,455; the 2002 A bonds by $2,979,426 and the 2002 B 
bonds by $1,866,873. The net carrying amount along with the swap termination fees will be 
amortized over the life of the old bonds for the 2001 U and 2002 B Series and over the life of the 
new bonds for the 2002 A Series. This refunding was undertaken to limit the Commission’s 
exposure to credit facility providers and to reduce its interest rate derivative portfolio. The 
2009 B refunding produced in excess of $10.8 million in net present value savings, assuming 
bond support costs for the refunded bonds at market levels at the time of the refunding. 


In December 2009, the Commission also issued $208,280,000 Turnpike Senior Revenue 
Refunding Bonds Series C of 2009. The bonds were issued to refund Series Q of 1998 and 
partially refund Series A of 2002. The reacquisition price exceeded the net carrying amount of 
the 1998 Q bonds by $447,956 and the 2002 A bonds by $3,359,779 and will be amortized over 
the life of the new bonds. This refunding was undertaken to limit the Commission’s exposure to 
credit facility providers and to reduce its interest rate derivative portfolio. The 2009 C bonds are 
anticipated to be refinanced as they come due at then prevailing market levels. 


In April 2010, the Commission issued $225,095,000 Turnpike Bond Anticipation Notes 2010 
A-1. The 2010 A-1 Series Anticipation Notes were issued primarily to make payments to 
PennDOT in accordance with Act 44 to fund certain grants to mass transit agencies and various 
road, highway, bridge and capital projects of PennDOT. 


In May 2010, the Commission issued $79,900,000 2010 Series A-2 Turnpike Bond Anticipation 
Notes. The A-2 Series Anticipation Notes were issued primarily to provide funds to redeem the 
2008 Series C-4 Bond Anticipation Notes by their maturity date. 
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6. Debt (continued) 


In prior years, the Commission defeased certain revenue bonds by placing funds in irrevocable 
trusts to provide for all future debt service payments on the defeased bonds. Accordingly, the 
trust account assets and the liability for the defeased bonds were not included in the 
Commission’s financial statements. At May 31, 2010 and 2009, the Commission had 
$881.6 million and $895.5 million, respectively, of defeased bonds outstanding. 


Total debt service requirements subsequent to May 31, 2010 are as follows: 


Year Ending May 31 
Principal 


Maturities Interest Total 
 (In Thousands) 
    
2011 $ 155,555 $ 251,969 $ 407,524 
2012 438,395 243,110 681,505 
2013 137,385 239,030 376,415 
2014 180,225 234,535 414,760 
2015 170,340 228,323 398,663 
2016 – 2020 670,950 1,138,297 1,809,247 
2021 – 2025 868,675 1,047,001 1,915,676 
2026 – 2030 891,628 837,200 1,728,828 
2031 – 2035 1,219,497 662,232 1,881,729 
2036 – 2040 1,368,811 336,752 1,705,563 
2041 – 2045 328,510 22,294 350,804 
 $ 6,429,971 $ 5,240,743 $ 11,670,714 
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6. Debt (continued) 


Debt service requirements subsequent to May 31, 2010 related to the Mainline debt are as 
follows: 


Year Ending May 31 
Principal 


Maturities Interest Total 
 (In Thousands) 
    
2011 $ 135,070 $ 199,609 $ 334,679 
2012 417,105 191,554 608,659 
2013 115,140 188,418 303,558 
2014 156,955 184,932 341,887 
2015 146,000 179,786 325,786 
2016 – 2020 530,560 914,103 1,444,663 
2021 – 2025 689,280 861,551 1,550,831 
2026 – 2030 661,873 702,242 1,364,115 
2031 – 2035 927,452 587,444 1,514,896 
2036 – 2040 1,116,173 268,792 1,384,965 
2041 – 2045 277,785 22,213 299,998 
 $ 5,173,393 $ 4,300,644 $ 9,474,037 
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6. Debt (continued) 


Debt service requirements subsequent to May 31, 2010 related to Oil Company Franchise Tax 
debt are as follows: 


Year Ending May 31 
Principal 


Maturities Interest Total 
 (In Thousands) 
    
2011 $ 14,605 $ 40,965 $ 55,570 
2012 15,195 40,420 55,615 
2013 15,850 39,788 55,638 
2014 16,550 39,107 55,657 
2015 17,290 38,386 55,676 
2016 – 2020 99,335 179,405 278,740 
2021 – 2025 126,390 152,931 279,321 
2026 – 2030 161,285 118,299 279,584 
2031 – 2035 204,470 71,703 276,173 
2036 – 2040 143,588 66,636 210,224 
 $ 814,558 $ 787,640 $ 1,602,198 
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6. Debt (continued) 


Debt service requirements subsequent to May 31, 2010 related to Motor License Registration Fee 
debt are as follows: 


Year Ending May 31 
Principal 


Maturities Interest Total 
 (In Thousands) 
    
2011 $ 5,880 $ 11,395 $ 17,275 
2012 6,095 11,136 17,231 
2013 6,395 10,824 17,219 
2014 6,720 10,496 17,216 
2015 7,050 10,151 17,201 
2016 – 2020 41,055 44,789 85,844 
2021 – 2025 53,005 32,519 85,524 
2026 – 2030 68,470 16,659 85,129 
2031 – 2035 87,575 3,085 90,660 
2036 – 2040 109,050 1,324 110,374 
2041 – 2045 50,725 81 50,806 
 $ 442,020 $ 152,459 $ 594,479 
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6. Debt (continued) 


Swap Payments and Associated Debt 


Net swap payments and related debt service requirements subsequent to May 31, 2010, assuming 
current interest rates remain the same for the term of the agreements are as follows: 


 Variable-Rate Bonds Fixed  


Year Ending May 31 
Principal 


Maturities Interest 
Interest Rate 
Swaps, Net Total 


 (In Thousands) 
     
2011 $ 1,870 $ 1,723 $ 24,874 $ 28,467 
2012 1,940 1,717 24,874 28,531 
2013 2,035 1,712 24,874 28,621 
2014 2,110 1,705 23,085 26,900 
2015 2,195 1,699 21,155 25,049 
2016 – 2020 12,385 8,393 105,907 126,685 
2021 – 2025 15,130 8,194 108,401 131,725 
2026 – 2030 77,215 7,719 107,653 192,587 
2031 – 2035 214,475 5,626 80,746 300,847 
2036 – 2040 251,545 2,126 30,652 284,323 
2041 – 2045 50,725 81 1,179 51,985 
 $ 631,625 $ 40,695 $ 553,400 $ 1,225,720 
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6. Debt (continued) 


 Fixed-Rate Bonds Variable  


Year Ending May 31 
Principal 


Maturities Interest 
Interest Rate 
Swaps, Net Total 


 (In Thousands) 
     
2011 $ – $ 13,901 $ (5,542) $ 8,359 
2012 – 13,901 (5,531) 8,370 
2013 – 13,901 (5,518) 8,383 
2014 – 13,901 (5,505) 8,396 
2015 – 13,900 (8,391) 5,509 
2016 – 2020 – 69,504 (41,726) 27,778 
2021 – 2025 72,040 66,358 (37,464) 100,934 
2026 – 2030 141,825 33,873 (14,945) 160,753 
2031 – 2035 64,150 6,504 (3,300) 67,354 
2036 – 2040 – – (441) (441)
 $ 278,015 $ 245,743 $ (128,363) $ 395,395 


 
As rates vary, variable rate bond interest payments and net swap payments will vary. Please refer 
to Note 8 Commitments and Contingencies – Interest Rate Swaps for additional information 
pertaining to the individual swaps. 


7. Retirement Benefits 


Substantially all employees of the Commission participate in the Commonwealth of 
Pennsylvania State Employees’ Retirement System (System), a cost-sharing multiple-employer 
public employee retirement system that was established under the provisions of Public Law 858, 
No. 331. 


Membership in the System is mandatory for most Commission employees. The System provides 
retirement, death, and disability benefits, which were established by and can be amended 
according to statute. Retirement benefits vest after 5 years of credited service. Employees who 
retire at age 60 with three years of service or with 35 years of service if under age 60 are entitled 
to an unreduced annual retirement benefit. 
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7. Retirement Benefits (continued) 


Article II of the Pennsylvania Constitution provides the General Assembly the authority to 
establish or amend benefit provisions. Act 2001-9, signed into law on May 17, 2001, established 
Class AA membership whereby, generally, annual full retirement benefits for electing active 
members is 2.5% of the member’s highest three-year average salary (final average salary) 
multiplied by years of service. Commission employees hired after June 30, 2001 are Class AA 
members. Members hired on or before June 30, 2001 had the option, but were not required, to 
elect Class AA membership. Those members not electing Class AA membership are considered 
Class A. The general annual benefit for full retirement for Class A members is 2% of the 
member’s final average salary multiplied by years of service. 


Covered Class A and Class AA employees are required by statute to contribute to the System at a 
rate of 5% and 6.25%, respectively, of their gross pay. Employees’ contributions are recorded in 
individually identified accounts, which are also credited with interest, calculated quarterly to 
yield 4% per annum, as mandated by statute. Accumulated employee contributions and credited 
interest vest immediately and are returned to the employee upon termination of service if the 
employee is not eligible for other benefits. 


Participating agency contributions, including those for the Commission, are also mandated by 
statute and are based upon an actuarially determined percentage of gross pay that is necessary to 
provide the System with assets sufficient to meet the benefits to be paid to System members. 


The Commission’s retirement contribution, as a percentage of covered payroll, for all Class A 
and Class AA members whose normal retirement age is any age upon accumulation of 35 years 
of eligibility points or age 60, with three years of service is as follows: 


Year Ended June 30 Class A Class AA 
   
2010 2.52% 3.15% 
2009 2.64% 3.29% 
2008 2.63% 3.28% 
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7. Retirement Benefits (continued) 


The Commission’s required contributions and percentage contributed are as follows: 


Year Ended May 31 


Commission 
Required 


Contribution 
% 


Contributed
 (In Millions)  
   
2010 $ 3.9 100% 
2009 $ 3.8 100% 
2008 $ 3.7 100% 


 
A copy of the System’s annual financial statements can be obtained by writing to: State 
Employees’ Retirement System, 30 North Third Street, P.O. Box 1147, Harrisburg, Pennsylvania 
17108-1147. 


8. Commitments and Contingencies 


Litigation 


The Commission is a defendant in a number of legal proceedings pertaining to matters normally 
incidental to routine operations. Such litigation includes, but is not limited to, claims asserted 
against the Commission arising from alleged torts, alleged breaches of contracts, and 
condemnation proceedings. Tort claims against the Commission are generally barred by 
sovereign immunity, except as waived by statute. Further, to the extent waived, damages for any 
loss are limited by sovereign immunity to $250,000 for each person and $1,000,000 for each 
accident. Based on the current status of all of the Commission’s legal proceedings, it is the 
opinion of Commission management and counsel that they will not have a material effect on the 
Commission’s financial position. 
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8. Commitments and Contingencies (continued) 


Recent Correspondence from the Internal Revenue Service 


The Commission received correspondence from the IRS dated September 27, 2010. In that letter, 
the IRS states that the Commission’s $275,000,000 Turnpike Revenue Bonds, Series A of 2009 
(Federally Taxable-Issuer Subsidy-Build America Bonds) have been named for examination. 
The IRS further states that it “routinely” examines municipal debt issuances to determine 
compliance with Federal tax requirements and that at this time, the IRS has no reason to believe 
that the Commission’s debt issuance fails to comply with any of the applicable tax requirements. 


The IRS letter requests that certain documents and information from the Commission be supplied 
to the IRS by November 1, 2010. The Commission intends to cooperate fully with the IRS letter 
and any additional requests made by the IRS. 


Open Purchase Order Commitments 


The Commission had open purchase order commitments of approximately $676,740,000 and 
$1,166,707,000 at May 31, 2010 and 2009, respectively. 


Lease and Funding Agreement between the Commission and PennDOT 


On October 14, 2007, the Commission and PennDOT entered into a Lease and Funding 
Agreement (the Funding Agreement) as required under the terms of Act 44. The Funding 
Agreement provides for an option to the Commission to lease the portion of Interstate 80 located 
in the Commonwealth from PennDOT. In addition, the Funding Agreement contains certain 
provisions set forth in Act 44, including provisions dealing with the terms and conditions of the 
conversion of Interstate 80 into a toll road (the Conversion), subject to the requisite approval of 
the Federal Highway Administration (FHWA), and the operation, maintenance, repair and 
improvement of Interstate 80. The term of the Funding Agreement is fifty years. 


The Funding Agreement grants the unilateral option to the Commission to effectuate the 
Conversion at any time before the third anniversary of the Agreement (the Conversion Period), 
provided that the Commission may elect to extend such Conversion Period for three additional 
one-year periods. FHWA’s approval of the tolling of I-80 is required in order for the Conversion 
to occur. 
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8. Commitments and Contingencies (continued) 


On April 6, 2010, the FHWA denied the Commission’s application to toll I-80. Barring any 
unforeseen circumstances, the Commission does not expect to appeal the FHWA’s decision or 
pursue the tolling of I-80 further. Also, the Commission does not plan to extend the Conversion 
Period during the notice period provided under the Funding Agreement. The Conversion Period 
will terminate on October 14, 2010. 


In addition, the Funding Agreement commits the Commission to make certain payments to 
PennDOT. The Commission made payments of $900 million and $850 million (recorded as 
nonoperating expense) in fiscal 2010 and fiscal 2009, respectively. 


Act 44 provides that under certain circumstances, payments to PennDOT drop to $450 million 
annually for the remaining term of the Funding Agreement. It is the Commission’s position that 
the reduced payment of $450 million is effective beginning with the 2010-11 Fiscal Year. The 
Commission intends to pay this amount on a quarterly basis as provided in Act 44, and made the 
first such payment in the amount of $112.5 million on July 29, 2010. In addition, the 
Commission’s obligation under Act 44 to make annual surplus payments of the General Reserve 
Fund Surplus (as defined in Act 44) at the end of each Fiscal Year, which would have 
commenced upon Conversion, also terminates if the Conversion does not occur. 


On August 4, 2010, the Commission received a letter from PennDOT, executed by the Secretary 
of Transportation (also the Chairman of the Commission), in which PennDOT acknowledged 
receipt of the Commission’s first quarterly payment for Fiscal Year 2010-2011 on July 29, 2010 
in the amount of $112.5 million but stated that it was not aware of a basis for a reduction in the 
Commission’s quarterly payments until the beginning of Fiscal Year 2011-2012 (the “August 4th 
Letter”). The August 4th Letter requested that the Commission provide a written legal analysis of 
the basis for the Commission’s determination that the amount of its July 2010 payment is 
consistent with Act 44 and the Funding Agreement given that the two parties are apparently not 
in agreement on the required amount of such payment. 


The Commission received a second letter from PennDOT, executed by the Secretary of 
Transportation, dated August 16, 2010 (the “August 16th Letter”), stated that the payment 
received on July 29, 2010 was less than PennDOT believes is owed. The remaining amount 
owed for the first quarterly payment made in July 2010 was stated to be $118.125 million. 
PennDOT’s stated position would apply to the remainder of the Fiscal Year 2010-2011 quarterly 
payments. Further, the August 16th Letter stated that PennDOT was invoking the remedies and 
sanctions available under Act 44 and the Funding Agreement, and that it was PennDOT’s  
 







Pennsylvania Turnpike Commission  
A Component Unit of the Commonwealth of Pennsylvania 


Notes to Financial Statements (continued) 


 


  
1006-1164688 55


8. Commitments and Contingencies (continued) 


position that the August 4th Letter started the 45-day period under the Funding Agreement to cure 
the Commission’s alleged failure to make the July 2010 quarterly payment required under the 
Funding Agreement. Assuming the 45-day period commenced on August 4, 2010, the 45-day 
period expired on September 18, 2010; provided, however, that the conclusion of such period 
will be deferred if the Commission prevails in its position that invoking the informal dispute 
resolution procedures provided for under the Funding Agreement prior to September 18, 2010 
tolled the cure period (such 45-day period, as deferred, if applicable, the “Cure Period”). 
Because PennDOT has claimed that the Commission must pay the higher payment for Fiscal 
Year 2010-11, and the Commission disputes that claim, the Funding Agreement requires that the 
parties must enter an informal dispute resolution process before pursuing other remedies. 


If the Commission and PennDOT do not resolve the disagreement regarding the amount of the 
payments due in Fiscal Year 2010-2011 under Act 44 and the Funding Agreement during the 
Cure Period, the Funding Agreement provides that PennDOT may seek and receive, as its sole 
and exclusive remedy pursuant to the Funding Agreement, to have all actions of the Commission 
taken by a vote of the Commissioners passed by a unanimous vote of all Commissioners until 
such time as the payment, as agreed to by the Commission and PennDOT, is made. Under 
Act 44, a unanimous vote is not required if it would prevent the Commission from complying 
with covenants with “current bondholders, debt holders or creditors”. The Funding Agreement 
does not refer to “current bondholders, debt holders or creditors”, but provides that a unanimous 
vote is not required if it would prevent the Commission from complying with covenants with 
“bondholders, debt holders or creditors having such status as of the Effective Date” which under 
the Funding Agreement is defined as October 14, 2007. 


On August 31, 2010, the Commission sent PennDOT a response letter in which it disputed the 
claims made in the August 16th Letter and invoked the informal dispute resolution process. The 
Commission has not yet determined whether it will provide the legal analysis requested by 
PennDOT in the August 4th Letter. 


It is anticipated that there will be further communications between the parties concerning these 
matters. The resolution of these matters and the timing of such resolution is uncertain. There can 
be no assurance that PennDOT will not seek remedies in addition to the requirement of 
unanimous voting by the Commissioners. Furthermore, legislation has been proposed and may 
be introduced to amend Act 44 to require that the Commission make payments in excess of 
$450,000,000 to PennDOT for one or more additional years. Consequently, the Commission may 
be required to make payments in amounts greater than $450,000,000 for one or more Fiscal 
Years, but the likelihood of such higher payments cannot be determined at this time. 
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8. Commitments and Contingencies (continued) 


Further, Act 44 provides that if the Secretary of the Budget notifies the Commission of a failure 
to make a payment to PennDOT under the Act and Funding Agreement, all actions of the 
Commission taken by a vote of the Commissioners shall be passed by a unanimous vote of all 
Commissioners until such time as the payment is made. However, a unanimous vote shall not be 
required if it would prevent the Commission from complying with certain covenants, as 
described above. The Commission has been advised that the Office of the Budget of the 
Commonwealth may assert that the reduced annual payment obligation is not effective until 
Fiscal Year 2011-12 and that a higher amount, a maximum of $922,500,000, is payable in Fiscal 
2010-2011. 


The Commission is required by the terms of the Funding Agreement and Act 44 to fix and adjust 
tolls at levels that will generate revenues (together with other available moneys) sufficient to 
pay, among other things, amounts to PennDOT pursuant to the Funding Agreement when due 
and other obligations of the Commission, and the Commission has covenanted in the Subordinate 
Indenture to set tolls at a level sufficient to meet its coverage obligations taking into account any 
additional debt incurred in order to make such payments. 


As part of its operating plan, the Commission plans to continue to increase toll rates to meet its 
obligations. However, because of the significance of the quarterly payments that are due to 
PennDOT, and insufficient sources of cash flows from current operations, the Commission plans 
to issue debt for the foreseeable future to finance its required payments to PennDOT. There can 
be no assurance that the Commission will be able to continue to issue debt on terms that are 
acceptable, or at all, to finance these obligations. As previously discussed, the sole and exclusive 
remedy for the failure to make the required payments to PennDOT under the Funding Agreement 
is that all actions of the Commission require unanimous vote of the Commissioners until such 
time that required payments are made. This requirement for a unanimous vote of the 
Commission does not apply if it would prevent the Commission from complying with debt 
covenants. 


The payment obligations of the Commission under the Funding Agreement are subordinate 
obligations of the Commission, payable from amounts in the General Reserve Fund only as 
permitted by any financing documents, financial covenants, liquidity policies, or other 
agreements in effect for the Commission. However, the Commission is required by the terms of 
the Funding Agreement to fix and adjust tolls at levels that will generate revenues (together with 
other available moneys) sufficient to pay, among other things, amounts to PennDOT pursuant to 
the Funding Agreement when due and other obligations of the Commission. 
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8. Commitments and Contingencies (continued) 


Interest Rate Swaps 


On December 18, 2008, the Commission entered into two forward starting swap agreements. 
Each swap agreement had a notional amount of $150,000,000 with an effective date of June 1, 
2010 and a termination date of June 1, 2039. The Commission entered into these forward starting 
interest rate swaps to hedge its exposure to interest rate variations and interest rate costs with 
respect to the Series 2009 A and Series 2010 B Mainline Revenue Bonds. The Commission 
issued its Series 2009 A revenue bonds in June 2009 and issued its Series 2010 B revenue bonds 
in September 2010. 


In December 2009, the Commission fully terminated the swaps related to the Mainline 2002 B 
and the 2001 U bonds. The Commission partially terminated the 2002 A swaps. The remaining 
portion of the 2002 A swap contracts are now associated with the 2009 C bonds which were used 
in part to refund the 2002 A bonds. Termination fees of $52.7 million were paid to the 
counterparties. Such fees were added to the basis of the refunded bonds in calculating the 
gain/loss on extinguishment, which will be amortized over the shorter of the term of the new 
bonds or the old bonds. 


In May 2010, the Commission executed suspensions of approximately three to four years with 
counterparties related to certain constant maturity swaps. The suspensions provided for lump-
sum payments to the Commission totaling $20.7 million. These payments were in lieu of interest 
payments that may have been received by the Commission during the term of the suspensions 
and will be recognized over the term of the suspensions. At the end of the suspensions, these 
constant maturity swaps will revert back to their original terms. 
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8. Commitments and Contingencies (continued) 


Following is a summary of the swaps in place as of May 31, 2010. These swap agreements 
contain certain risks as described below. 


   Receivable  Payable Fair Value 


Associated Debt  Notional Value 
Final 


Maturity 
Floating 


Rate Index(1) 
Fixed 
Rate  


Floating 
Rate Index(1) 


Fixed 
Rate 


(to) from 
Counterparty


         
        
Series C 2009 $ 38,520,000 12/01/2030 67.00% of 1-month LIBOR   4.40% $ (9,804,107)


(formerly 2002 A) 76,990,000 12/01/2030      (19,604,533)
 38,520,000 12/01/2030      (9,804,057)
         
CMS 2001U & 2002A         
Suspended until 7/1/2013 107,784,000 12/01/2030 60.08% of 10-year LIBOR   67.00% of 1-month  1,251,126 


107,784,000 12/01/2030    LIBOR  6,697,948 
Suspended until 7/1/2014 106,563,676 12/01/2030      670,916 
 134,733,000 12/01/2030      8,369,012 
         
Series C 2003 48,000,000 12/01/2032 63.00% of 1-month LIBOR   SIFMA  (5,129,722)
 112,000,000 12/01/2032 Plus 20 basis points     (11,970,533)
         
CMS Series C 2003          
Suspended until 5/15/ 2014 
Suspended until 5/15/2014 


80,000,000 11/15/2032 60.15% of 10-year LIBOR  67.00% of 1-month 587,853 
80,000,000 11/15/2032   LIBOR 587,853 


         
         
Series B, C, D 2005 57,860,000 07/15/2041 SIFMA    4.20% (6,748,840)
 57,845,000 07/15/2041      (6,734,827)
 57,860,000 07/15/2041      (6,743,043)
 57,860,000 07/15/2041      (6,743,043)
         
Series A 2006 118,015,000 12/01/2026  4.19%  SIFMA  14,385,059 
         


Series B 2008 
100,000,000 12/01/2038 SIFMA    4.89% (22,828,250)
100,000,000 12/01/2038      (22,852,422)


 100,000,000 12/01/2038      (22,828,244)
         
Series A 2009 150,000,000 06/01/2039 99.68% of 3-month LIBOR   SIFMA  9,844,390 
Series B 2010 150,000,000 06/01/2039 99.80% of 3-month LIBOR   SIFMA  9,944,221 
 
(1) 1-month LIBOR was .35125% at May 31, 2010. 


3-month LIBOR was .53625% at May 31, 2010. 
10-year LIBOR was 3.404% at May 31, 2010. 
SIFMA was .29 % at May 31, 2010. 
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8. Commitments and Contingencies (continued) 


• Credit Risk – The Commission is exposed to credit risk for swaps that have positive fair 
values. The Commission was exposed to credit risk with respect to the Series U of 2001 
and Series A of 2002 constant maturity swaps, the Series C of 2003 constant maturity 
swaps, the Series A of 2006 swaps, the Series A of 2009, and the Series B of 2010 
forward starting swaps at May 31, 2010. However, should interest rates change and the 
fair values of the other swaps become positive, the Commission would have additional 
credit risk exposure. 


The Commission had eleven counterparties at May 31, 2010. The credit ratings of the 
swap providers as of May 31, 2010 were A to AAA and A2 to Aaa by Standard & Poor’s 
and Moody’s, respectively. To mitigate the exposure to credit risk, the swap agreements 
include collateral provisions in the event of downgrades to the swap counterparties’ credit 
ratings. Collateral would be posted with a third-party custodian and would be in the form 
of cash, U.S. Treasury Obligations, or U.S. Government Agency Securities. 


• Interest Rate Risk – The Commission is exposed to variable interest rates with respect to 
the fixed-to-variable swap agreement associated with the Series A of 2006 Revenue 
Bonds. Additionally, the Commission will be exposed to variable interest rates if the 
swap provider for a variable-to-fixed swap agreement defaults or if a variable-to-fixed 
swap is terminated. 


• Basis Risk – The Commission is exposed to basis risk related to Series C of 2003, and 
Series A of 2009, and the constant maturity swap agreements. The exposure for the 
agreement associated with the Series C 2003 is to the extent that SIFMA exceeds 63% of 
one-month LIBOR plus 20 basis points. The risk for the Series A of 2009 is to the extent 
SIFMA exceeds 99.68% of 3-month LIBOR and the Series B of 2010 is to the extent 
SIFMA exceeds 99.80% of 3-month LIBOR. The exposure for the Series C 2003 
constant maturity swap is to the extent 67% of one-month LIBOR exceeds 60.15% of 10-
year LIBOR. The exposure for Series U of 2001 and Series A of 2002 constant maturity 
swaps is to the extent 67% of one-month LIBOR exceeds 60.08% of 10-year LIBOR. 


  







Pennsylvania Turnpike Commission  
A Component Unit of the Commonwealth of Pennsylvania 


Notes to Financial Statements (continued) 


 


  
1006-1164688 60


8. Commitments and Contingencies (continued) 


• Termination Risk – The swap agreements may be terminated due to a number of 
circumstances and the Commission retains the option to terminate the swaps at any time. 
If a swap agreement is terminated (by either party), the respective variable-rate bond 
would no longer carry a synthetic fixed interest rate. Also, if at the time of termination, 
the swap had a negative fair value, the Commission would be liable to the swap 
counterparty for a liability equal to the swap’s fair value. It is generally the 
Commission’s intent at the time of swap execution to maintain the swap transactions for 
the life of the financing. 


9. Related Party Transactions 


The Commission incurred costs of $36.4 million in each of the fiscal years ended May 31, 2010 
and 2009 related to its use of the Commonwealth’s State Police in patrolling the Turnpike 
System. 


10. Postemployment Benefits 


Plan Description 


The Commission maintains a welfare plan program (the Plan), one purpose of which is to 
provide benefits to eligible retirees and their dependents. The Plan is a single employer, defined 
benefit plan. The Plan’s financial statements are not included in the financial statements of a 
public employee retirement system. The Plan issues a stand-alone financial report, which can be 
obtained by contacting the Commission’s Accounting Department. 


Plan benefit provisions and employee contribution rates are established and may be amended by 
the Commission. The Plan provides certain postemployment medical, prescription drug, dental 
and vision benefits to management employees who have reached 20 years of service and are 
under age 60; benefit eligibility changes from 20 to 10 years for retirees 60 years of age or older. 
The Plan provides certain postemployment medical and prescription drug benefits to union 
employees who have reached 20 years of service and are under age 60; benefit eligibility 
changes from 20 to 10 years for retirees 60 years of age or older. 
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10. Postemployment Benefits (continued) 


The Commission established The Pennsylvania Turnpike Commission Retiree Medical Trust to 
provide these postemployment benefits other than pensions (OPEB). The Trust is administered 
by PNC Bank, which acts as a third-party administrator and administers the Trust under an 
administrative agreement with the Commission. 


Funding Policy 


The Commission approved a Retiree Medical Trust Funding Policy whereby the Commission 
anticipates approving an annual contribution to the Trust in the amount of the Annual Required 
Contribution (ARC) as determined by the Commission’s actuary during the approval of each 
Operating Budget. 


Annual OPEB Cost and Net OPEB Asset 


The Commission’s ARC for fiscal 2010 was $29,144,000. The Commission made contributions 
towards the ARC totaling $28,677,160. The contributions towards the ARC consisted of 
$30,000,000 transferred to the Retiree Medical Trust offset by $1,322,840 in contributions from 
retirees. The contributions were also offset by a $45,299 ARC adjustment which resulted in an 
ending OPEB asset of $1,764,182 which was recorded as an other asset on the balance sheet at 
year end. The Commission’s net OPEB cost for fiscal 2010 was $29,189,299. 


The ARC for fiscal 2009 was $27,835,000. The Commission made contributions towards the 
ARC totaling $29,033,699. The contributions towards the ARC consisted of $28,000,000 
transferred to the Retiree Medical Trust plus $2,167,629 paid to retiree medical benefit providers 
for current premiums offset by $1,133,930 in contributions from retirees. The contributions were 
offset by a $16,675 ARC adjustment which resulted in an ending OPEB asset of $2,276,321, 
which was recorded as an other asset on the balance sheet at year end and a net OPEB cost of  
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10. Postemployment Benefits (continued) 


$27,851,675 for fiscal 2009. The following chart summarizes the components of the 
Commission’s annual OPEB cost for the years ended May 31, 2010, 2009 and 2008 and the 
amount contributed to the Plan. 


Fiscal Year 
Ended May 31, 


Normal 
Cost 


30-Year Level 
Dollar 


Amortization 
of the 


Unfunded 
Actuarial 
Accrued 
Liability 
(UAAL) 


Mid-Year 
Contribution 


Interest 
ARC 


Adjustment
Annual 


OPEB Cost
Actual 


Contributions 
Percentage 


Contributed
Ending Net 
OPEB Asset


 (Dollar Amounts in Thousands) 
         
2010 $ 6,655 $ 21,389 $ 1,100 $ 45 $ 29,189 $ 28,677 98.25% $ 1,764 
2009 $ 6,373 $ 20,391 $ 1,071 $ 17 $ 27,852 $ 29,034 104.2% $ 2,276 
2008 $  4,920 $ 13,800 $ 735 $ – $ 19,455 $ 20,549 105.6% $ 1,094 


 
The ARC and its components (normal cost, UAAL, and mid-year contribution interest) were 
obtained from an actuarial valuation, prepared by an independent actuary, as of March 1, 2008 
using census data collected as of March 1, 2008 and health care claims for the period ended 
March 1, 2008. 


Retiree and spouse contribution rates at May 31, 2010 are as follows: 


• Management employees and union employees who retired prior to July 1, 1998 and 
October 1, 1997, respectively—the retiree/spouse contributes the full cost of coverage 
less the Commission’s monthly subsidy of $19.28 once the retiree turns 65. 


• Union employees who retired on October 1, 1997 or later—the retiree/spouse contributes 
the full cost of coverage less the Commission’s monthly subsidy of $73.50 when the 
retiree or spouse reach age 65. 


• Surviving spouses are paying 100% of the premiums, except for surviving spouses of 
Management employees who retired after March 1, 2001. 
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10. Postemployment Benefits (continued) 


Funding Status and Funding Progress 


Fiscal Year 
Ended May 31 


Actuarial 
Value of 
Assets 


Actuarial 
Accrued 
Liability 
(AAL) 


Unfunded 
Actuarial 
Accrued 
Liability 
(UAAL) 


Funded 
Ratio 


Covered 
Payroll 


UAAL as a 
Percentage
of Covered 


Payroll 
 (Dollar Amounts in Thousands) 
       
2010 $ 66,436 $ 263,398 $ 196,962 25.2% $ 123,754 159.2% 
 
The actuarial value of assets, AAL, and UAAL amounts for the fiscal year ended May 31, 2010 
in the above chart was obtained from an actuarial valuation, prepared by an independent actuary, 
as of March 1, 2010. 


The schedule of funding progress, presented as required supplementary information (RSI) 
following the notes to the financial statements, is to present multiyear trend information about 
whether the actuarial value of Plan assets is increasing or decreasing over time relative to the 
actuarial accrued liability for benefits. 


Actuarial Methods and Assumptions 


The valuation measurements in the above charts are, in part, the result of estimates of the value 
of reported amounts and assumptions about the probability of events far into the future and such 
actuarially determined estimates are subject to continual revision as actual results are compared 
to past expectations and new estimates are made about the future. Also, the valuation 
measurements are based, in part, on the types of benefits provided under the terms of the 
substantive plan at the time of the valuation and on the pattern of sharing of costs between the 
Commission and the plan members through the respective valuation dates. The actuarial methods 
and assumptions used include techniques that are designed to reduce the effects of short-term  
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10. Postemployment Benefits (continued) 


volatility in actuarial accrued liabilities and the actuarial value of assets, consistent with the long-
term perspective of the calculations. Following is a summary of the actuarial methods and 
assumptions used in the March 1, 2010 valuation. 


Actuarial cost method Projected Unit Credit 
Discount rate 8% 
Rate of return on assets 8% 
Amortization method Level dollar 
Amortization period 30 years (closed) 
Asset valuation method Fair value 


 


Health Care Trend Medical 
Prescription 


Drugs Dental Vision 
     
Initial Rate 10% 12% 5% 4% 
Ultimate Rate 5% in 2020 5% in 2024 5% 4% 
Annual Change 0.5% decrease 0.5% decrease NA NA 
Cost Incurred costs Incurred costs Incurred costs Incurred costs 


 
Salary increases were not considered as OPEB benefits are not based upon pay. 


11. Self-Insurance 


The Commission is exposed to various risks of losses such as theft of, damage to, and destruction 
of assets, errors and omissions, third-party torts, injuries to employees, injuries to third parties 
due to accidents caused by Commission automobiles, and natural disasters. The Commission has 
purchased commercial insurance for all risks of losses, including employee medical benefits, 
except for torts, injuries to employees and injuries to third parties due to accidents caused by 
Commission automobiles. No settlements exceeded insurance coverage for each of the past three 
years. 


The Commission recorded a liability of $30.3 million and $26.8 million for loss and loss 
adjustment expenses on claims relating to self-insurance that have been incurred but not reported 
as of May 31, 2010 and 2009, respectively. This liability is based on GASB Statement No. 10, 
Accounting and Financial Reporting for Risk Financing and Related Insurance Issues, which  
 







Pennsylvania Turnpike Commission  
A Component Unit of the Commonwealth of Pennsylvania 


Notes to Financial Statements (continued) 


 


  
1006-1164688 65


11. Self-Insurance (continued) 


requires that a liability for claims be recorded if information prior to the issuance of the financial 
statements indicates that it is probable that a liability has been incurred at the date of the 
financial statements and the amount of the loss can be reasonably estimated. The liability is 
calculated based on the Commission’s past loss experience. The liability was discounted using a 
rate of 4.05% for each of the fiscal years ended May 31, 2010 and 2009. The liability includes 
amounts for claims adjustment expense and is net of any salvage and subrogation. Salvage and 
subrogation were not material for the years ended May 31, 2010 and 2009. The Commission 
believes the liability established is reasonable and appropriate to provide for settlement of losses 
and related loss adjustment expenses. 


Management believes that its reserve for claims incurred but not reported is determined in 
accordance with generally accepted actuarial principles and practices. However, estimating the 
ultimate liability is a complex and judgmental process inasmuch as the amounts are based on 
management’s informed estimates and judgments using data currently available. As additional 
experience and data become available regarding claim payments and reporting patterns, 
legislative developments and economic conditions, the estimates are revised accordingly and the 
impact is reflected currently in the Commission’s financial statements. 


The following summary provides aggregated information on self-insurance liabilities: 


 


June 1, 


Effects of 
Discount


as of Incurred Claims Paid Claims 


Effects of 
Discount 


as of May 31, 
 2009 


Liability 
June 1, 


2009 
Current 


Year 
Prior 
Years 


Current 
Year 


Prior  
Years 


May 31, 
2010 


2010 
Liability 


 (In Thousands) 
Year ended May 31, 2010         
Workers’ compensation $ 7,724 $ 2,099 $ 902 $ 1,133 $ (491) $ (2,208) $ (1,995) $ 7,164 
Automobile/general tort 19,061 – 2,810 1,384 (21) (53) – 23,181 
 $ 26,785 $ 2,099 $ 3,712 $ 2,517 $ (512) $ (2,261) $ (1,995) $ 30,345 
 
 


June 1, 


Effects of 
Discount


as of Incurred Claims Paid Claims 


Effects of 
Discount 


as of May 31, 
 2008 


Liability 
June 1, 


2008 
Current 


Year 
Prior 
Years 


Current 
Year 


Prior  
Years 


May 31, 
2009 


2009 
Liability 


 (In Thousands) 
Year ended May 31, 2009         
Workers’ compensation $ 7,070 $ 1,732 $ 1,622 $ 2,403 $ (623) $ (2,381) $ (2,099) $ 7,724 
Automobile/general tort 15,200 – 96 4,118 (24) (329) – 19,061 
 $ 22,270 $ 1,732 $ 1,718 $ 6,521 $ (647) $ (2,710) $ (2,099) $ 26,785 
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11. Self-Insurance (continued) 


 


June 1, 


Effects of 
Discount


as of Incurred Claims Paid Claims 


Effects of 
Discount 


as of May 31, 
 2007 


Liability 
June 1, 


2007 
Current 


Year 
Prior 
Years 


Current 
Year 


Prior  
Years 


May 31, 
2008 


2008 
Liability 


 (In Thousands) 
Year ended May 31, 2009         
Workers’ compensation $ 7,541 $ 2,023 $ 1,218 $ 589 $ (706) $ (1,863) $ (1,732) $ 7,070 
Automobile/general tort 11,029 – 40 4,497 (20) (346) – 15,200 
 $ 18,570 $ 2,023 $ 1,258 $ 5,086 $ (726) $ (2,209) $ (1,732) $ 22,270 


 
The foregoing reflects an adjustment for a deficiency of $2.5 million, $6.5 million, and 
$5.1 million for the fiscal years ended May 31, 2010, 2009, and 2008, respectively, for prior 
years’ incurred claims that resulted from a change in estimate as more information became 
available. 


12. Compensated Absences 


Sick leave is earned at a rate of 3.08 hours every two weeks, or ten days per year. Unused sick 
leave may be carried over from year to year up to a maximum of 18 days. In November of each 
year, employees are reimbursed for all accumulated unused sick leave above the maximum. Sick 
leave payouts were $2.0 million in both November 2009 and 2008. 


Vacation leave is earned at varying rates, depending on years of service. Management employees 
earn between 4.62 and 8.93 hours every two weeks. Union employees earn between 3.08 and 
8.93 hours every two weeks. 


Upon termination of employment, all unused sick and vacation leave is paid to the employee. A 
summary of changes to compensated absences for the years ended May 31, 2010 and 2009 is as 
follows: 


Fiscal Year  
Ended May 31 


Beginning 
Balance Additions Reductions 


Ending 
Balance 


Due Within 
One Year 


 (In Thousands) 
      
2010 $ 16,908 $ 12,944 $ 12,882 $ 16,970 $ 10,145 
2009 $ 16,847 $ 12,713 $ 12,652 $ 16,908 $ 10,108 
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13. Segment Information 


The Pennsylvania Turnpike Commission consists of three segment types. These segments are 
based on the types of revenues and the associated bond issues. The Mainline consists of income 
and expenses directly associated with the operations of the toll road. In addition, all bonds 
pledged against this revenue source are included in this segment. 


The Oil Company Franchise segment consists of revenues received from the Commission’s 
allocation of the Commonwealth’s Oil Company Franchise Tax. This revenue is pledged against 
the associated 2003 Series A, B, and C Oil Company Franchise Tax Revenue Bonds, the 2006 
Series A and B Oil Company Franchise Tax Revenue Bonds and the 2009 A, B, C, D and E Oil 
Company Franchise Tax Revenue Bonds. 


The Motor License segment consists of an annual income of $28 million which has been 
provided to the Commission pursuant to Section 20 of Act 3 of the Commonwealth of 
Pennsylvania. This income is pledged against the Registration Fee Revenue Bonds 2005 Series. 
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13. Segment Information (continued) 


Balance Sheet 


 May 31, 2010
 


Mainline
Oil


Franchise
Motor 


License Total
 (In Thousands) 
Assets  
Current assets:  


Cash and cash equivalents $ 105,934 $ – $ – $ 105,934
Accounts receivable 27 – – 27
Accrued interest receivable 178 – – 178
Inventories 22,302 – – 22,302
Restricted current assets:  


Cash and cash equivalents 389,006 98,513 21,977 509,496
Short-term investments 94,546 57,210 2,595 154,351
Accounts receivable 37,943 118 – 38,061
Accrued interest receivable 1,620 2,427 151 4,198


Total current assets 651,556 158,268 24,723 834,547
  
Noncurrent assets:  


Long-term investments:  
Long-term investments unrestricted 27,148 – – 27,148
Long-term investments restricted 345,592 234,626 20,401 600,619


Total long-term investments 372,740 234,626 20,401 627,767
  


Capital assets not being depreciated:  
Land 234,543 – – 234,543
Assets under construction 1,200,456 – – 1,200,456


Capital assets being depreciated:  
Buildings 765,723 – – 765,723
Improvements other than buildings 87,312 – – 87,312
Equipment 472,246 – – 472,246
Infrastructure 5,653,976 – – 5,653,976
 8,414,256 – – 8,414,256
Less accumulated depreciation 4,023,581 – – 4,023,581


 4,390,675 – – 4,390,675
Other assets:  


Other assets 1,840  1,840
Deferred issuance costs 46,946 13,637 4,451 65,034


Total other assets 48,786 13,637 4,451 66,874
Total noncurrent assets 4,812,201 248,263 24,852 5,085,316
Total assets $ 5,463,757 $ 406,531 $ 49,575 $ 5,919,863


Continued on the following page. 
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13. Segment Information (continued) 


Balance Sheet (continued) 


 May 31, 2010
 


Mainline 
Oil


Franchise
Motor 


License Total
 (In Thousands) 
Liabilities and net assets  
Current liabilities:  


Accounts payable and accrued 
liabilities $ 246,016 $ 42,301 $ 12,246 $ 300,563


Current portion of debt 135,070 14,605 5,880 155,555
Unearned income 31,885 – – 31,885


Total current liabilities 412,971 56,906 18,126 488,003
  
Noncurrent liabilities:  


Debt, less current portion, net of 
unamortized premium/discount 5,008,926 806,457 429,536 6,244,919


Other noncurrent liabilities 45,636 6,747 – 52,383
Total noncurrent liabilities 5,054,562 813,204 429,536 6,297,302
Total liabilities 5,467,533 870,110 447,662 6,785,305
  
Net assets (deficit):  


Invested in capital assets, net of 
related debt 2,222,014 (750,703) (443,073) 1,028,238


Restricted for construction purposes – 287,124 44,986 332,110
Unrestricted (deficit) (2,225,790) – – (2,225,790)


Total net assets (deficit) (3,776) (463,579) (398,087) (865,442)
Total liabilities and net assets $ 5,463,757 $ 406,531 $ 49,575 $ 5,919,863
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13. Segment Information (continued) 


Statement of Revenues, Expenses, and Changes in Net Assets 


 Year Ended May 31, 2010 
 


Mainline 
Oil 


Franchise 
Motor 


License Total 
 (In Thousands) 
Operating revenues:     


Net fares $ 693,827 $ – $ – $ 693,827 
Other 16,274 – – 16,274 


 710,101 – – 710,101 
Operating expenses:     


Cost of services 375,819 2,193 414 378,426 
Depreciation 260,316 – – 260,316 


 636,135 2,193 414 638,742 
Operating income (loss) 73,966 (2,193) (414) 71,359 
     
Nonoperating revenues (expenses):     


Investment earnings 11,044 10,630 1,247 22,921 
Other nonoperating revenues  4,103 3,071 – 7,174 
Act 44 payments to PennDOT (900,000) – – (900,000)
Capital assets transferred to 


PennDOT (64,058) – – (64,058)
Interest and bond expenses (213,513) (31,327) (18,909) (263,749)


Nonoperating expenses, net (1,162,424) (17,626) (17,662) (1,197,712)
Loss before capital contributions (1,088,458) (19,819) (18,076) (1,126,353)
Capital contributions 40,894 61,030 28,248 130,172 
(Decrease) increase in net assets (1,047,564) 41,211 10,172 (996,181)
     
Net assets (deficit) at beginning of year 822,532 (324,156) (367,637) 130,739 
Intersegment transfers 221,256 (180,634) (40,622) – 
Net assets (deficit) at end of year $ (3,776) $ (463,579) $ (398,087) $ (865,442)
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13. Segment Information (continued) 


Statement of Cash Flows 


 Year Ended May 31, 2010 
 


Mainline 
Oil


Franchise 
Motor 


License Total 
 (In Thousands) 
Operating activities  
Cash received from customer tolls and 


deposits $ 699,626 $ – $ – $ 699,626 
Cash payments for goods and services (240,794) (1,313) (319) (242,426)
Cash payments to employees (131,120) (794) (116) (132,030)
Cash received from other operating 


activities 8,363 – – 8,363 
Net cash provided by (used in) 


operating activities 336,075 (2,107) (435) 333,533 
  
Investing activities  
Proceeds from sales and maturities of 


investments 1,105,454 219,040 25,638 1,350,132 
Interest received on investments 9,255 8,064 1,018 18,337
Purchases of investments (1,410,643) (305,237) (7,596) (1,723,476)
Net cash (used in) provided by 


investing activities (295,934) (78,133) 19,060 (355,007)
  
Capital and related financing activities  
Capital grants received 2,888 6,813 984 10,685
Cash proceeds from motor license grant – – 28,000 28,000
Cash proceeds from oil company 


franchise tax – 59,733 – 59,733 
Construction and acquisition of capital 


assets (419,685) (170,764) (39,402) (629,851)
Proceeds from sale of capital assets 1,140 – – 1,140
Payments for bond expenses (11,934) (174) (346) (12,454)
Payments for redemption of debt (601,300) (55,245) (5,685) (662,230)
Interest paid on debt (73,381) (25,130) (20,947) (119,458)
Interest subsidy – Build America Bonds 5,386 3,071 – 8,457
Swap suspension payments 11,835 8,873 – 20,708
Proceeds from debt issuances 894,109 297,287 – 1,191,396
Net cash (used in) provided by capital 


and related financing activities (190,942) 124,464 (37,396) (103,874)


Continued on the following page. 
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13. Segment Information (continued) 


Statement of Cash Flows (continued) 


 Year Ended May 31, 2010 
 


Mainline 
Oil


Franchise 
Motor 


License Total 
 (In Thousands) 
Noncapital financing activities  
Cash payments to PennDOT $ (900,000) $ – $ – $ (900,000)
Payments for bond expenses (1,154) – – (1,154)
Payments for redemption of debt (636,470) – – (636,470)
Interest paid on debt (84,422) – – (84,422)
Proceeds from debt issuances 1,770,689 – – 1,770,689
Net cash provided by (used in) 


noncapital financing activities 148,643 – – 148,643 
(Decrease) increase in cash and cash 


equivalents (2,158) 44,224 (18,771) 23,295 
  
Cash and cash equivalents at beginning 


of year 497,098 54,289 40,748 592,135 
Cash and cash equivalents at end of 


year $ 494,940 $ 98,513 $ 21,977 $ 615,430 


Continued on the following page – see accompanying schedule of reconciliation. 
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13. Segment Information (continued) 


Statement of Cash Flows (continued) 


 Year Ended May 31, 2010 
 


Mainline 
Oil


Franchise 
Motor 


License Total 
 (In Thousands) 
Reconciliation of operating income 


(loss) to net cash provided by 
(used in) operating activities  


Operating income (loss) $ 73,966 $ (2,193) $ (414) $ 71,359
Adjustments to reconcile operating 


income (loss) to net cash provided by 
(used in) operating activities:     


Depreciation 260,316 – – 260,316
Change in operating assets and 


liabilities:     
Accounts receivable (3,257) – – (3,257)
Inventories (3,158) – – (3,158)
Other assets 492 – – 492
Accounts payable and accrued 


liabilities 3,744 86 (21) 3,809 
Other noncurrent liabilities 3,972 – – 3,972


Net cash provided by (used in) 
operating activities $ 336,075 $ (2,107) $ (435) $ 333,533 
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13. Segment Information (continued) 


Statement of Cash Flows (continued) 


Noncash activities 


The Commission recorded an increase of $3.7 million in the fair value of its investments for the year 
ended May 31, 2010. Increases by segment were: Mainline, $1.1 million; Oil Franchise, $2.2 million and 
Motor License, $0.4 million. 


The Commission recorded $4.4 million for the amortization of bond premium for the year ended May 31, 
2010. Amortization by segment was: Mainline, $2.6 million; Oil Franchise, $1.1 million and Motor 
License, $0.7 million. 


The Commission recorded $10.7 million for the amortization of deferred refunding losses, amortization of 
bond issuance costs and amortization of swap agreement costs for the year ended May 31, 2010. 
Amortization by segment was: Mainline, $8.4 million; Oil Franchise, $1.2 million and Motor License, 
$1.1 million. 


The Commission recorded $34.0 million in total fair value for capital contributions for the year ended 
May 31, 2010. The capital contributions were recorded for the Mainline segment only. 


The Commission records intersegment activity related to revenue, expense, asset and liability transfer 
between its segments. Some of the intersegment entries are related to cash transfers; others are noncash 
transfers as required. Net intersegment transfers for the year ended May 31, 2010 were: to Mainline, 
$221.2 million; from Oil Franchise, $180.6 million; and from Motor License, $40.6 million. 
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13. Segment Information (continued) 


Balance Sheet (Restated)1 


 May 31, 2009
 


Mainline 
Oil


Franchise
Motor 


License Total
 (In Thousands) 
Assets  
Current assets:  


Cash and cash equivalents $ 118,623 $ – $ – $ 118,623
Short-term investments 2,031 – – 2,031
Accounts receivable 595 – – 595
Accrued interest receivable 152 – – 152
Inventories 19,144 – – 19,144
Restricted current assets:  


Cash and cash equivalents 378,475 54,289 40,748 473,512
Short-term investments 69,535 21,679 903 92,117
Accounts receivable 30,100 5,635 736 36,471
Accrued interest receivable 602 2,114 329 3,045


Total current assets 619,257 83,717 42,716 745,690
  
Noncurrent assets:  


Long-term investments:  
Long-term investments unrestricted 14,546 – – 14,546
Long-term investments restricted 75,238 181,706 39,729 296,673


Total long-term investments 89,784 181,706 39,729 311,219
  


Capital assets not being depreciated:  
Land 204,665 – – 204,665
Assets under construction 1,120,359 – – 1,120,359


Capital assets being depreciated:  
Buildings 742,815 – – 742,815
Improvements other than buildings 70,886 – – 70,886
Equipment 454,609 – – 454,609
Infrastructure 5,245,845 – – 5,245,845
 7,839,179 – – 7,839,179
Less accumulated depreciation 3,772,970 – – 3,772,970


 4,066,209 – – 4,066,209
Other assets:  


Other assets 2,332 – – 2,332
Deferred issuance costs 31,690 11,884 4,606 48,180


Total other assets 34,022 11,884 4,606 50,512
Total noncurrent assets 4,190,015 193,590 44,335 4,427,940
Total assets $ 4,809,272 $ 277,307 $ 87,051 $ 5,173,630


Continued on the following page. 
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13. Segment Information (continued) 


Balance Sheet (Restated)1 (continued) 


 May 31, 2009
 


Mainline 
Oil


Franchise
Motor 


License Total
 (In Thousands) 
Liabilities and net assets  
Current liabilities:  


Accounts payable and accrued 
liabilities $ 179,763 $ 24,106 $ 13,799 $ 217,668


Current portion of debt 690,955 13,075 5,685 709,715
Unearned income 28,555 – – 28,555


Total current liabilities 899,273 37,181 19,484 955,938
  
Noncurrent liabilities:  


Debt, less current portion, net of 
unamortized premium/discount 3,047,807 564,091 435,204 4,047,102


Other noncurrent liabilities 39,660 191 – 39,851
Total noncurrent liabilities 3,087,467 564,282 435,204 4,086,953
Total liabilities 3,986,740 601,463 454,688 5,042,891
  
Net assets (deficit):  


Invested in capital assets, net of 
related debt 2,184,464 (587,016) (411,179) 1,186,269


Restricted for construction purposes – 262,860 43,542 306,402
Unrestricted (deficit) (1,361,932) – – (1,361,932)


Total net assets (deficit) 822,532 (324,156) (367,637) 130,739
Total liabilities and net assets $ 4,809,272 $ 277,307 $ 87,051 $ 5,173,630
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13. Segment Information (continued) 


Statement of Revenues, Expenses, and Changes in Net Assets (Restated)1 


 Year Ended May 31, 2009 
 


Mainline 
Oil 


Franchise 
Motor 


License Total 
 (In Thousands) 
Operating revenues:     


Net fares $ 615,604 $ – $ – $ 615,604 
Other 17,904 38 1 17,943 


 633,508 38 1 633,547 
Operating expenses:     


Cost of services 384,261 7,874 1,229 393,364 
Depreciation 241,701 – – 241,701 


 625,962 7,874 1,229 635,065 
Operating income (loss) 7,546 (7,836) (1,228) (1,518)
     
Nonoperating revenues (expenses):     


Investment earnings 12,869 11,481 3,322 27,672 
Other nonoperating revenues  660 – – 660 
Act 44 payments to PennDOT (850,000) – – (850,000)
Interest and bond expenses (144,457) (24,952) (22,144) (191,553)


Nonoperating expenses, net (980,928) (13,471) (18,822) (1,013,221)
Loss before capital contributions (973,382) (21,307) (20,050) (1,014,739)
Capital contributions 10,869 58,280 28,000 97,149 
(Decrease) increase  in net assets (962,513) 36,973 7,950 (917,590)
     
Net assets (deficit) at beginning of year 1,186,498 59,084 (197,253) 1,048,329 
Intersegment transfers 598,547 (420,213) (178,334) – 
Net assets (deficit) at end of year $ 822,532 $ (324,156) $ (367,637) $ 130,739 
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13. Segment Information (continued) 


Statement of Cash Flows (Restated)1 


 Year Ended May 31, 2009 
 


Mainline 
Oil


Franchise 
Motor 


License Total 
 (In Thousands) 
Operating activities  
Cash received from customer tolls and 


deposits $ 629,760 $ – $ – $ 629,760 
Cash payments for goods and services (245,187) (6,858) (901) (252,946)
Cash payments to employees (134,415) (852) (209) (135,476)
Cash received from other operating 


activities 12,900 38 1 12,939
Net cash provided by (used in) 


operating activities 263,058 (7,672) (1,109) 254,277
     
Investing activities  
Proceeds from sales and maturities of 


investments 328,198 326,934 125,600 780,732 
Interest received on investments 9,737 12,550 4,056 26,343
Purchases of investments (367,403) (219,041) (78,745) (665,189)
Net cash (used in) provided by 


investing activities (29,468) 120,443 50,911 141,886
     
Capital and related financing 


activities  
Capital grants received 11,312 1,272 – 12,584 
Cash proceeds from motor license grant – – 28,000 28,000
Cash proceeds from oil company 


franchise tax – 57,379 – 57,379 
Construction and acquisition of capital 


assets (333,204) (153,349) (42,007) (528,560)
Proceeds from sale of capital assets 1,225 – – 1,225 
Payments for bond expenses (523) (135) (374) (1,032)
Payments for redemption of debt (49,495) (12,560) (5,500) (67,555)
Interest paid on debt (64,618) (21,658) (21,524) (107,800)
Proceeds from debt issuances 64,921 – – 64,921
Net cash (used in) capital and related 


financing activities (370,382) (129,051) (41,405) (540,838)


Continued on the following page. 
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13. Segment Information (continued) 


Statement of Cash Flows (Restated)1 (continued) 


 Year Ended May 31, 2009 
 


Mainline 
Oil


Franchise 
Motor 


License Total 
 (In Thousands) 
Noncapital financing activities  
Cash payments to PennDOT $ (850,000) $ – $ – $ (850,000)
Payments for bond expenses (1,250) – – (1,250)
Payments for redemption of debt – – – –
Interest paid on debt (45,643) – – (45,643)
Proceeds from debt issuances 938,129 – – 938,129 
Net cash provided by noncapital 


financing activities 41,236 – – 41,236
(Decrease) increase in cash and cash 


equivalents (95,556) (16,280) 8,397 (103,439)
  
Cash and cash equivalents at beginning 


of year 592,654 70,569 32,351 695,574
Cash and cash equivalents at end of 


year $ 497,098 $ 54,289 $ 40,748 $ 592,135


Continued on the following page – see accompanying schedule of reconciliation. 
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13. Segment Information (continued) 


Statement of Cash Flows  (Restated)1 (continued) 


 Year Ended May 31, 2009 
 


Mainline 
Oil


Franchise 
Motor 


License Total 
 (In Thousands) 
Reconciliation of operating income 


(loss) to net cash provided by 
(used in) operating activities     


Operating income (loss) $ 7,546 $ (7,836) $ (1,228) $ (1,518)
Adjustments to reconcile operating 


income (loss) to net cash provided by 
(used in) operating activities:  


Depreciation 241,701 – – 241,701
Change in operating assets and 


liabilities:  
Accounts receivable (641) – – (641)
Inventories (3,772) – – (3,772)
Other assets (939) – – (939)
Accounts payable and accrued 


liabilities 17,185 171 119 17,475 
Other noncurrent liabilities 1,978 (7) – 1,971


Net cash provided by (used in) 
operating activities $ 263,058 $ (7,672) $ (1,109) $ 254,277


 
1 Note that amounts for 2009 have been restated as discussed in Note 2. 
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13. Segment Information (continued) 


Statement of Cash Flows (continued) 


Noncash activities 


The Commission recorded an increase of $3.4 million in the fair value of its investments for the year 
ended May 31, 2009. Increases by segment were: Mainline, $3.1 million; Oil Franchise, $0.1 million and 
Motor License, $0.2 million. 


The Commission recorded $4.4 million for the amortization of bond premium for the year ended May 31, 
2009. Amortization by segment was: Mainline, $2.8 million; Oil Franchise, $0.9 million and Motor 
License, $0.7 million. 


The Commission recorded $8.8 million for the amortization of deferred refunding losses, amortization of 
bond issuance costs and amortization of swap agreement costs for the year ended May 31, 2009. 
Amortization by segment was: Mainline, $5.0 million; Oil Franchise, $0.2 million and Motor License, 
$3.6 million. 


The Commission records intersegment activity related to revenue, expense, asset and liability transfer 
between its segments. Some of the intersegment entries are related to cash transfers; others are noncash 
transfers as required. Net intersegment transfers for the year ended May 31, 2009 were: to Mainline, 
$598.5 million; from Oil Franchise, $420.2 million; and from Motor License, $178.3 million. 
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14. Subsequent Events 


In July 2010, the Commission issued $209,230,000 Turnpike Multi-Modal Revenue Refunding 
Bonds, Series A of 2010. The bonds were issued at a variable rate and mature on December 1, 
2035. The 2010 A bonds were issued to provide funds to refund the Commission’s outstanding 
Turnpike Multi-Modal Revenue Refunding bonds, Series A-1, A-2, A-3 of 2008. 


In July 2010, the Commission issued $273,526,108 Turnpike Subordinate Revenue Bonds Series 
B of 2010, consisting of Subseries B-1 and B-2. The 2010 B bonds will bear interest at fixed 
rates from 5.00% to 6.00%. The B-1 Series will mature December 1, 2037 and the B-2 Series 
will mature December 1, 2034. The 2010 B bonds were used to finance the costs of redeeming a 
portion of the Subordinate Revenue Bond Anticipation Notes, Subseries A-1 of 2010 and all of 
the Subordinate Revenue Bond Anticipation Notes, Subseries A-2 of 2010 and also for making 
payments to the Pennsylvania Department of Transportation in accordance with Act 44. 


Also issued in July were $187,816,151 Motor License Fund-Enhanced Turnpike Subordinate 
Special Revenue Bonds, Series A of 2010, consisting of Sub-Series A-1, A-2 and A-3 (MLF 
Special Revenue Bonds). The 2010 A bonds will bear interest at fixed rates from 4.50% to 
5.50%. The Subseries A-1 Series will mature on December 1, 2038, the Subseries A-2 will 
mature December 1, 2034 and the Subseries A-3 will mature on December 1, 2029. 


The proceeds of the 2010 A MLF bonds were used to redeem a portion of the Subseries A-1 
Subordinate Revenue Bond Anticipation Notes and for making payments to PennDOT in 
accordance with Act 44. 


The 2010 B-2 Revenue Bonds and the 2010 A-2 MLF Special Revenue bonds consist of 
Convertible Capital Appreciation Bonds. Interest on the Convertible Capital Appreciation Bonds 
will compound from their date of delivery to December 1, 2015. Prior to the current interest date, 
interest will not be paid on a current basis, but will be added to the principal on each June 1 and 
December 1, commencing on December 1, 2010, and will be treated as if accruing in equal daily 
amounts between compounding dates until payable at maturity or upon prior redemption. After 
the current interest commencement date, interest will be payable on a current basis on each 
June 1 and December 1 starting on June 1, 2016. 
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14. Subsequent Events (continued) 


The 2010 A-3 MLF Special Revenue Bonds consist of Capital Appreciation Bonds. Interest on 
the Capital Appreciation Bonds will compound from their date of delivery. Interest on the 
Capital Appreciation Bonds will not be paid on a current basis, but will be added to the principal 
on each June 1 and December 1, commencing on December 1, 2010, and will be treated as if 
accruing in equal daily amounts between compounding dates until payable at maturity or upon 
prior redemption. 


In September 2010, the Commission issued $600,000,000 Federally Taxable Build America 
Bonds Series B of 2010. The Commission has designated the 2010 B bonds as “Build America 
Bonds” for purposes of the American Recovery and Reinvestment Act of 2009 and has elected to 
receive a cash subsidy from the United States Treasury equal to 35% of the interest payable on 
the 2010 B bonds. The 2010 B Build America Bonds will bear interest at fixed rates between 
5.511% and 5.561%. The bonds will mature on December 1, 2049. The 2010 B Build America 
Bonds are Debt Service Reserve Fund Bonds and, accordingly, are secured by monies in the 
Debt Service Reserve Fund. The proceeds of the 2010 B Bonds will be used to finance the costs 
of various capital expenditures set forth in the Commission’s current Ten Year Capital Plan. 
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Pennsylvania Turnpike Commission  
A Component Unit of the Commonwealth of Pennsylvania 


Schedule of Funding Progress – 
Postemployment Healthcare Benefits 


(Dollar Amounts in Thousands) 


Actuarial 
Valuation Date 


Actuarial 
Value of 
Assets 


Actuarial 
Accrued 
Liability 
(AAL) 


Unfunded 
AAL 


(UAAL) 
Funded 
Ratio 


Covered 
Payroll 


UAAL as a 
Percentage
of Covered 


Payroll 
       
March 1, 2010 $ 66,436 $ 263,398 $ 196,962 25.2% $ 123,754 159.2% 
March 1, 2008 $ 14,000 $ 228,067 $ 214,067 6.54% $ 118,559 180.6% 
February 28, 


2006 $ – $ 167,785 $ 167,785 –% $ 109,022 153.9% 
 
 







Ernst & Young LLP


Assurance | Tax | Transactions | Advisory


About Ernst & Young


   Ernst & Young is a global leader in assurance, 


tax, transaction and advisory services. 


Worldwide, our 144,000 people are united by 


our shared values and an unwavering commitment to 


quality. We make a difference by helping our people, our 


clients and our wider communities achieve their potential.


For more information, please visit www.ey.com


Ernst & Young refers to the global organization 


of member firms of Ernst & Young Global Limited, 


each of which is a separate legal entity. 


Ernst & Young Global Limited, a UK company 


limited by guarantee, does not provide services 


to clients. This Report has been prepared by 


Ernst & Young LLP, a client serving member firm 


located in the United States. 









